Public Document Pack

Meeting of:
Date:
Time:
Venue:

Pennines Township Delegated and Funding
Sub-Committee
Wednesday, 10th March, 2021
6.00 pm.
Zoom

This agenda gives notice of items to be considered in private as required by
Regulations 5 (4) and (5) of The Local Authorities (Executive Arrangements)
(Meetings and Access to Information) (England) Regulations 2012.
Item
No.
1

AGENDA

Page No

Apologies
To receive any apologies for absence.

2

Declarations of Interest
Members are required to declare any disclosable pecuniary, personal
or personal and prejudicial interests they may have and the nature of
those interests relating to items on this agenda and/or indicate if S106
of the Local Government Finance Act 1992 applies to them.

3

Urgent Items of Business
To determine whether there are any additional items of business
which, by reason of special circumstances, the Chair decides should
be considered at the meeting as a matter of urgency.

4

Minutes

3-5

To consider the minutes of the meeting of the Pennines Township
Delegated and Funding Sub-Committee held 28th October 2020.
5

Link4Life
An update/presentation on the work that is being carried out in the local
community by Link4Life.

6

Pennines Township Funds 2020/21
To consider applications for assistance from the Pennines Township

6 - 64

Fund 2020/2021.
6

Additional applications for Township Funding

65 - 88

The Sub-Committee is requested to consider an additional two funding
applications.
7

Dale Street, Milnrow Experimental Traffic Regulation Order
To consider proposals for Dale Street, Milnrow, using the
Government’s Active Travel Fund.

Pennines Township Delegated and Funding Sub-Committee Members
Councillor David Bamford
Councillor Tom Besford
Councillor John Blundell
Councillor Irene Davidson
Councillor Ashley Dearnley
Councillor Janet Emsley
Councillor John Hartley
Councillor Aftab Hussain
Councillor Andy Kelly
Councillor Amna Mir
Councillor Rina Paolucci
Councillor John Taylor
For more information about this meeting, please contact:
Michael Garraway
Committees and Constitutional Services Manager
Rochdale Borough Council
Telephone – 01706 924718
e-mail – michael.garraway2@rochdale.gov.uk

89 - 91

Agenda
ItemPack
4
Public
Document
PENNINES TOWNSHIP DELEGATED AND FUNDING SUB-COMMITTEE
MINUTES OF MEETING
Wednesday 28th October 2020
PRESENT: Councillor Mir (Chair); Councillors Bamford, Besford, Blundell,
Davidson, Dearnley, Emsley, Hartley, Aftab Hussain, Kelly, Paolucci and
Taylor
OFFICERS: T. Knight, I. Trickett and C. Woods (Neighbourhoods Directorate)
and A. James (Resources Directorate)
20

APOLOGIES
There were no apologies for absence.

21

DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST
There were no declarations of interests.

22

URGENT ITEMS OF BUSINESS
There were no urgent items of business but an updated Commissioning Form
had been circulated and published in relation to funding application Appendix
4d (Stonie Heys Play Area Expansion).

23

MINUTES
Resolved:
That the Minutes of the meeting of Pennines Township Delegated and
Funding Sub-Committee, held on 11th March 2020, be approved and signed
as a correct record.

24

PENNINES TOWNSHIP FUNDS 2020/21
The Sub-Committee considered a report of the Director of Neighbourhoods
which provided an update on the revenue and capital expenditure,
commitments and balances of the Pennines Township Funds 2019/20, which
would enable the Sub-Committee to consider the allocation of funds to
proposed projects. Alternatives considered: In considering the report,
Members considered whether or not to approve the allocation of funds to
projects as appropriate.
In considering the submitted report, clarification was sought on capital funding
that had been carried over and subsequently returned to central budgets with
a request that the full amount be returned to the Township Fund. Members of
the Committee were advised that the procedure that had been agreed was
that should the Township require the carried over capital funding for particular
projects, then it could be utilised for this purpose. Assurance was also sought
that in future years that budgets would automatically be carried forward.

Page 3

Resolved:
1. That the expenditure, commitments and balances for Pennines Township
revenue and capital funds as detailed in Appendices 1 and 2 of the submitted
report, be noted;
2. That decisions made under delegated authority as detailed in Appendix 3 of
the submitted report, be noted;
3. That it be noted that the Townships and Communities Manager has
assessed proposed projects that were to be considered for funding against
the criteria of eligibility for the Pennines Township Fund, the priorities of the
Township and that any specific risks were identified in the submitted report;
4. That the applications for Township Funds 2019/20 be dealt with as outlined
in the table below;
Reference
Capital Funding
PTC/01/20

Application

PTC/02/20

Birch
Road/Thimble Declined
Close
Traffic
Regulation Order

PTC/05/20

Stonie Heyes Play Area Option
B
Expansion
approved

PTC/06/20

Hollingworth Lake Play £14,984 approved, if
Area Upgrade
funding from L4L or the
RSPCA
becomes
available, funding will
be
returned
to
Township
Temple Lane Traffic £7000 approved
Calming

PTC/07/20

Decision

Larchway
and £4500 approved
Rochdale Road Traffic
Regulation Order

£37,000

PTC/08/20

Kiln
Lane
Traffic Declined
Regulation Order

PTC/09/20

Clough Street Traffic Deferred to the next
Regulation Order
meeting

PTC/10/20

William Street Traffic Declined
Regulation Order

PTC/11/20

Todmorden
Road £5000 Approved
Traffic
Regulation

Page 4

Order and Bus Stop
Clearway

5.
That the Townships and Communities Manager, in consultation with
the Chair and Vice Chair of the Sub-Committee, be given delegated authority
to make decisions on any deferred projects.
Reasons for the decision:
The recommendations in the report were presented as management of the
Pennines Township Fund is a function that is delegated to the Pennines
Township Delegated and Funding Sub Committee. Pennines Township Funds
are allocated to projects that benefit the Township’s community and
environment, and realise the Township’s priorities and which will enable the
Sub-Committee to monitor and review the use of the Pennines Township
Fund to ensure the continued efficient and effective use of the funds.
Eligible for Call-in: Yes

Page 5

Agenda Item 6
Report to Pennines Township Delegated & Funding Sub Committee
Date of Meeting
Portfolio

Report Author
Public/Private Document

10 March 2021
Cabinet Member for
Neighbourhoods,
Community & Culture
Sharron Worrall
Public Document

Pennines Township Funds 2020/21
1.
1.1

2.

Executive Summary
Members to be updated on revenue and capital expenditure, commitments
and balances of Pennines Township Funds 2020/21 and enable the allocation
of funds to proposed projects.
Recommendation

2.1

Members note the expenditure, commitments and balances for Pennines
Township revenue and capital funds in Appendix 1 and 2.

2.2

Members note decisions made under delegated authority as detailed in
Appendix 3.

2.3

Members consider and approve, refuse or defer the allocation of funds to
proposed projects detailed in Appendix 4.

2.4

Members note the Townships & Communities Manager has assessed
proposed projects to be considered for funding against the criteria of eligibility
for the Pennines Township Fund, the priorities of the Township and any
specific risks have been identified (information detailed in Appendix 4).

2.5

The Townships & Communities Manager, in consultation with the Chair and
Vice Chair of the committee, to be given delegated authority to make
decisions on any deferred projects.

3.

Reason for Recommendation

3.1

Management of the Pennines Township Fund is delegated to the Pennines
Township Delegated & Funding Sub Committee.

3.2

Pennines Township Funds are allocated to projects that benefit the
Township’s community and environment, and realise the Township priorities.

Page 6

3.3

4.

To enable the committee to monitor and review the use of the Pennines
Township Funds to ensure continued efficient and effective use of the funds.
Key Points for Consideration

4.1

Members are asked to note expenditure, commitments and balances of
Pennines Township Funds 2020/21 in Appendix 1 and 2. Actual/committed
spend for revenue funds is 51.18% and capital funds is 94.85%.

4.2

Delegated decisions will be reported for information to each Pennines
Township Delegated & Funding Sub Committee to ensure that Members are
aware of the projects that have been agreed within their Ward. Members are
asked to note the decisions made under the delegated arrangements since
the last committee meeting in Appendix 3.

4.3

Projects have been identified for funding from Pennines Township Funds
2020/21. Members are asked to decide whether to approve, reject or defer
the allocation of revenue and capital funds to these proposed projects listed in
Appendix 4.

4.4

To reduce the potential for carry forward of funds during 2020/21, Members
are asked to agree to give delegated authority to make decisions on any
deferred projects to the Townships & Communities Manager, in consultation
with the Chair and Vice Chair of the committee.

4.5

Alternatives Considered
In considering the report, Members will decide whether or not to approve the
allocation of funds to projects as appropriate.

5.

Costs and Budget Summary

5.1

Pennines Township revenue and capital budget summaries that detail
expenditure, commitments and balances for financial year 2020/21 in
Appendix 1 and 2.

5.2

Committee will receive regular reports to enable Members to monitor the use
of the Pennines Township Fund to ensure best use of available resources.

5.3

Township funds are monitored on a monthly basis and financial monitoring
reports will be presented to future committees.

6.

Risk and Policy Implications

6.1

Specific risk issues for Members to consider arising from this report will be
identified for the proposed projects in Appendix 4.

6.2

The Townships Plan forms part of the Council’s policy framework. The plan
will be updated to reflect how funds are allocated across the Townships in line
with the identified priorities.

Page 7

6.3

The purpose of the Township Funds is to enable Township Committees to
meet their respective Township priorities and to deliver actions to meet those
priorities.

6.4

Under the Borough of Rochdale Compact with the voluntary sector the
Council has made a commitment to consider the impact on service users of
any changes to the funding arrangements for the voluntary sector and to
provide them with at least three months’ notice of any changes and liaise with
them and any relevant stakeholders to mitigate the impact of reduced funding.
Therefore, if Members are inclined not to continue funding the provision of a
service provided by the voluntary sector, Members should be mindful of their
obligations under the Compact.

7.
7.1

Consultation
Pennines Township Delegated & Funding Sub Committee receives regular
monitoring reports about the use of the funds. Any proposal for funding
requires support from at least one Member. All proposals will to be consulted
on as appropriate with Members, residents and other stakeholders.
Background Papers

Place of Inspection

None

N/A

For Further Information Contact:

Sharron Worrall Tel: 01706 924802
sharron.worrall@rochdale.gov.uk

Page 8

APPENDIX 1

PENNINES TOWNSHIP FUNDS REPORT 2020/21

OVERALL SUMMARY - REVENUE 2020/21
Budget b/f (2019/20)
Base Budget 2020/21
Income from other funds/services 2020/21
Budget Available 2020/21
Budgets transferred to services/actuals
Commitments
Total Actual + Commitments
Budget Remaining 2020/21

38,297
81,028
7,165
126,490
39,241
25,493
64,734
61,756

Forecast Outturn
Potential under/overspend 2020/21

126,490
-

Page 9

Funds

Projects Fund
Events Fund
Pennines Town Centres Fund
Littleborough Lakeside Ward Fund
Milnrow & Newhey Ward Fund
Smallbridge & Firgrove Ward Fund
Wardle & West Littleborough Ward Fund
Total

% Actual
Spend
31.02%

% Actual +
Committed
51.18%

Base
Budget
Income/
2020/21 Adjustments
£

Revised
Budget
2020/21

Actuals to
Period
£

64,028
5,000
3,000
3,000
3,000
3,000
81,028

93,834
5,000
9,753
5,600
5,054
4,249
3,000
126,490

£

Balance
b/f 2019/20
£
27,856
4,538
2,600
2,054
1,249
38,297

1,950
5,215
7,165

17,275
267
1,307
550
19,399

Committed
to Period
£
12,196
4,538
2,417
4,054
1,249
1,039
25,493

Virements
within Virements
Township to Services
Funds
£
£
(9,545)
17,367
5,000
825
2,091
175
825
1,693
586
825
19,842

Budget
Total to
remaining
Period
2020/21
£
£
37,293
5,000
4,538
5,600
5,054
4,249
3,000
64,734

56,541
5,215
61,756

APPENDIX 2

PENNINES TOWNSHIP FUNDS REPORT 2020/21

OVERALL SUMMARY - CAPITAL 2020/21

£

Budget b/f 2019/20
Base Budget 2020/21
Income/Adjustments 2020/21
Budget Available 2020/21
Budgets transferred to other services/actuals
Commitments
Total Actual + Commitments
Budget Remaining 2020/21

2,237
77,520
79,757
73,647
2,000
75,647
4,110

Forecast Outturn
Potential under/(over)spend 2020/21

79,757
-

Page 10

Funds

Capital Fund
Littleborough Lakeside Ward Capital Fund
Milnrow & Newhey Ward Capital Fund
Smallbridge & Firgrove Ward Capital Fund
Wardle & West Littleborough Ward Capital Fund
Total

Balance b/f
2019/20
£
2,237
2,237

Budget
Income/
2020/21
Adjustments
£
69,520
2,000
2,000
2,000
2,000
77,520

-

% Actual
Spend
92.34%

% Actual +
Committed
94.85%

Revised
Budget
2020/21

Actuals to
Period
£

Committed
to Period
£

71,757
2,000
2,000
2,000
2,000
79,757

376
840
1,216

2,000
2,000

Virements
within Virements
Township to Services
Funds
£
£
(4,110)
71,381
2,000
2,000
110
1,050
72,431

Budget
Total to
remaining
Period
2020/21
£
£
67,647
2,000
2,000
2,000
2,000
75,647

4,110
4,110

APPENDIX 3

PENNINES TOWNSHIP FUNDS - DELEGATED DECISIONS FOR INFORMATION
Members note the delegated decisions made by the Townships & Communities Manager in consultation with the Chair and Vice Chair of Pennines Township Committee
Name of Project

Project Description

PW/01/20

Poppy Pebbles

Littleborough
Local children will be given the opportunity to paint poppies on
Lakeside
pebbles and lay them at Pennines Township War Memorials as an
act of remembrance as the usual remembrance services and parades
will not be possible this year due to the coronavirus pandemic.
Pebble painting kits will be distributed to local primary schools and
the community via The Star Tree Studio.

PF/07/20

Christmas trees
contribution

Pennines
Costs for the provision of the borough's Christmas trees has
increased by 25% this year and Environmental Management sought a Township
contribution for their budget shortfall relating to the Christmas trees
supplied for Pennines Township in Littleborough, Milnrow, Newhey
and Wardle.

PF/05/20

Milnrow Christmas
Tree Picket Fence
Smallbridge Pantry
Children's Gifts

Construction and installation of a diamond shaped wooden picket
fence around a Christmas tree in Milnrow.
Smallbridge Pantry propose to provide the children of their
membership with two Christmas gifts each as local families on low
incomes will find the festive period particularly difficult as a
consequence of the pandemic restrictions.

Page 11

Ref No.

PW/05/20

PF/11/20

PF/08/20

Ward

Milnrow &
Newhey
Smallbridge &
Firgrove

Supply and install metal railing fencing around Wardle Bowling Green Wardle &
West
with lockable gates at the rear of the Pavilion and access from the
Littleborough
tennis courts to address the problem of anti-social behaviour and
damage being caused to the bowling green.
Milnrow &
Milnrow & District Women’s Institute propose to purchase a laptop,
Milnrow & District
Women's Institute IT colour laser printer and consumables (paper and printer inks) for the Newhey
use of their secretary to maintain links with the National Federation of
equipment
the WI and local Federation of Lancashire and disseminate/feedback
information received to/from members, deal with members’ requests
to attend Federation courses and minute both monthly general
meetings and committee meetings. In addition, the IT equipment
would be used for the production of publicity documents to encourage
new membership and printing of calendars, resources for meetings,
monthly newsletters and general information for distribution to
members.
Wardle Bowling
Green Fence

Page 1 of 2

Amount

Delegated Decision
Decision
Date
£183 09 October 2020
Awarded £183 from
Ward Fund

£1,240 16 October 2020

Awarded £1,240
from Projects Fund

£1,249.20 04 November 2020

Awarded £1,249.20
from Projects Fund
Awarded £1,307.20
from Ward Fund

£1,307.20 11 November 2020

£3,775 11 November 2020

Awarded £3,775
from Projects Fund

£900 11 November 2020

Awarded £900 from
Projects Fund

Ref No.

Name of Project

PF/06/20

Pennines
Putting the Pennines HMR Circle propose to address digital exclusion within the older
Township
Online
community of Pennines Township with an initiative that will involve
establishing a team of peer-to-peer volunteer trainers to provide
instruction and advice on accessing the internet, tablets with data
packs for loan, monthly tech drop in sessions offering repairs and
upgrades plus connecting people with shared interests and build on
the Digital Tech Library resource of new and refurbished tablet
computers, smart phones and other digital equipment loaded to older
people and families to help them obtain the advantages of getting
online.

PW/09/20

Hollingworth Road H H bar marking on Hollingworth Road, Littleborough to deter vehicles
Bar
from parking in a location that obstructs the access serving multiple
properties.
Derwent Avenue Salt Supply and installation of a salt bin on Derwent Avenue, Milnrow as
Bin
this location has been reported as hazardous during icy weather
conditions.
Wardle Bowling Club Provision of three combination padlocks to restrict access to the
Gates Locks
green at Wardle Bowling Club to prevent damage (locks to be placed
on the newly installed gate to the rear of the pavilion, an existing gate
at the side of the pavilion and a gate at the tennis courts).

PCW/05/20

PW/10/20

Project Description

Ward

Page 12

Page 2 of 2

Littleborough
Lakeside

Delegated Decision
Decision
Date
£3,715 24 November 2020 Awarded £3,715
from Projects Fund

Amount

£120 08 December 2020

Milnrow &
Newhey

£1,050 12 December 2020

Wardle &
West
Littleborough

£39.03 04 February 2021

Awarded £120 from
Ward Fund
Awarded £1,050
from Capital Ward
Fund
Awarded £39.03
from Ward Fund

APPENDIX 4
PENNINES TOWNSHIP FUNDS 2020/21
Projects Fund 2020/21 available for allocation = £56,541

Pennines Township Projects Fund 2020/21 - Proposed projects for decision
Fund Criteria & Request
Priorities Met
Originator

Ref No

Name of Project

PF/12/20

Birch Road Traffic Calming Re-profiling

PF/14/20

Pennines
Yes
Tackling Minds
£3,885
Township
People
Tackling Minds Community Interest Company organise angling events to improve the health and wellbeing of the local community with a focus on increasing participation
from people with mental health, addiction and recovery issues, experiencing social deprivation, disabilities and long-term health conditions. Working in partnership with
eighteen other organisations within the Borough as part of a Social Prescribing Network, Tackling Minds aims to make their services accessible to the people that need it;
providing our community with opportunities to take ownership of their health and wellbeing and to live healthier lives. The Angling Trust Get Fishing Award is incorporated
into the Tackling Minds events that offer fun, friendly and safe fishing days for families and individuals of all abilities. Tackling Minds aims to supply each and every angler
that completes the Get Fishing Award with their very own introductory start-up kit and keeps them engaged with informal and formal competitions, target species or a style
of fishing and the opportunity to fish at numerous venues across the region. Tackling Minds plan to promote their services with the creation of a web site, advertising on
social media, information pamphlets and establish their own merchandise line to generate funds to support their community projects. As a boroughwide project, this
application has also been submitted to Heywood, Middleton, Rochdale North and Rochdale South Townships to seek a contribution based on the number of people using
their service from each of the Townships as identified in the application form. (Application form at Appendix 4B)

Ward

Cost

Wardle & West Yes
Councillor Taylor
£1,870
Littleborough
Place
Re-profile the ramps on the existing flat top road humps on Birch Road outside Wardle High School as resurfacing patches from the reconstruction of the school have
Project
reduced the effectiveness of the humps within the existing 20mph zone. (Project brief at Appendix 4A)
Description
Risk implication The estimate may change if the scheme needs amendments to satisfy the requirements of the emergency services or TfGM, Ward Councillors require further information,
justification or scheme content or if there are any unforeseen issues during construction.

Page 13

Project
Description

Tackling Minds

Risk implication None
PF/15/20
Willows Lane and Princess Road Estate Traffic Calming Investigation
Project
Description

Smallbridge &
Yes
Councillor Kelly
£2,000
Firgrove
Place
Investigation and preparation of a report on a self-enforcing 20mph scheme for the estate roads of Willows Lane and Princess Road, Rochdale. (Project brief at Appendix
4C)

Risk implication None
PF/16/20

Littleborough
Yes
Resident
£8,000
Lakeside
Place
Supply and installation of knee high wooden posts in the grass verges along Calder Avenue, Moorfield Avenue, Springfield Avenue, Brooklyn Avenue and Mount Avenue,
Littleborough to prevent cars from parking and damaging the verges. (Project brief at Appendix 4D)

Calder Avenue Area Wooden Posts

Project
Description
Risk implication Cost assumes there are no underground services in the grass verge.

Page 1 of 3

Pennines Township Projects Fund 2020/21 - Proposed projects for decision
Ref No

Name of Project

Ward

PF/17/20

Artists Portal

Littleborough
Lakeside and
Wardle & West
Littleborough

Fund Criteria & Request
Priorities Met
Originator

Yes
People

Cost

Create and
Connect

£3,180

Create and Connect aims to promote artists and art within the Littleborough area with the set up of a website to act as a meeting place for creative people to gain advice,
learn of opportunities and network with other professionals working in the sector. The website will contain a portal where artists and makers can upload an image and a link
to their website so people wanting to employ an artist can contact them directly. All local artists and makers will be eligible to apply to have their work on the portal but the
work will be juried in order to maintain a professional standard of work. The portal will enable the community to find out more information about creative opportunities,
funding and events. (Application form at Appendix 4E)
Risk implication None
Smallbridge &
Yes
Benefice of
£1,000
PF/18/20
St John's Church Graveyard Wall Repair
Firgrove
Place
Dearnley, Wardle &
Smallbridge
Project
Description

Page 14

Project
Description

Repair of the dry stone wall in the graveyard of St John's Church, Smallbridge as part of the east wall has collapsed and the area needs to be made safe and presentable
for the community who visit to pay their respects to loved ones buried in the church grounds. (Application form at Appendix 4F)

Risk implication None

Capital Fund 2020/21 available for allocation = £4,110

Pennines Township Capital Fund 2020/21 - Proposed projects for decision
Fund Criteria & Request
Priorities Met
Originator

Ref No

Name of Project

PTC/09/20

Wardle & West Yes
Resident
£4,000
Littleborough
Place
Introduction of No Waiting At Any Time restrictions on the southerly side of Clough Street from its junction with Ramsden Road for a distance of 80 metres in a westerly
direction. Highways state it would also be beneficial to continue these restrictions for a distance of 10 metres on both sides of Heath Road to protect this junction. Vehicles
double parking on Clough Street from its junction with Ramsden Road up to and including its junction with Heath Road are obstructing sight lines and causing a hazard with
the reduced width of the carriageway. This scheme was deferred at Pennines Township Delegated & Funding Sub Committee on 28 October 2020 (Project brief
with plan at Appendix 4G)

Project
Description

Ward

Cost

Clough Street and Heath Road Waiting Restrictions

Risk implication Risks that may change the estimate are objections being received during the legal process or amendments made to the scheme during its development resulting in
additional costs. Also if the scheme requires amendments so as to satisfy the requirements of the emergency services or TfGM and if Ward Councillors require further
information, justification or scheme content. The estimate does not include for dealing with or reporting back to committee any objections received during the legal process.
To deal with objections may increase the cost due to staff time having to be expended. Also the estimate assumes that there will be no major amendments made to the
scheme at committee resulting in the scheme requiring readvertising.

Page 2 of 3

Pennines Township Capital Fund 2020/21 - Proposed projects for decision
Fund Criteria & Request
Priorities Met
Originator

Ref No

Name of Project

Ward

PTC/04/20

Gallipoli Memorial Benches

Littleborough
Yes
Lakeside and
Place
Milnrow & Newhey

Project
Description

Supply and installation of two bespoke commemorative benches to honour the two youngest local Lancashire Fusiliers killed at Gallipoli in 1915. In memory of Fusilier
Michael Francis Murphy killed at Gallipoli on 12 July 1915 (son of Michael and Catherine Murphy of 7 Stubley Mill Fold, Littleborough) a commemorative bench will be sited
at Littleborough Rail Station. In memory of Fusilier Brinton Hollows killed at Gallipoli on 26 July 1915 (son of William Hollows of 4 Whitehead Street, Milnrow) a
commemorative bench will be sited at Dale Street Memorial Garden. The bespoke commemorative benches will be constructed from galvanised mild steel and finished in
acrylic paint. Each bench will be fitted with an engraved stainless steel dedication plaque.
1 x Bespoke designed bench (25 year guarantee) = £1,896
1 x Engraved dedication plaque = £49
1 x Fixing kit = £12
Cost = £1,957

Page 15

Benches = £3,914
Delivery = £145
Installation = £300
Contingency = £435.90
Total cost = £4,794.90
Risk implication None

Page 3 of 3

Rochdale & District
Fusiliers
Association

Cost
£4,795

APPENDIX 4A

TOWNSHIP PROJECT BRIEF AND
COMMISSIONING FORM
Township

Pennines

Name of Request Originator

Councillor Taylor

Project Manager & Ext

Michael Aiken

Completed by

Nathan Mckendrey

Township Ref

Service Ref

PF/12/20

Date Completed

09/02/2021

A. DETAILS OF SCHEME
Scheme Name & Location

Birch Road Traffic Calming re-profiling

Scheme Description (include
as much information as
possible)

Re-profile the ramps on the existing flat top road humps outside Wardle
High School.

Scheme comments from
Highways

Desired Outcome (what is
required by the scheme)

Due to a number of resurfacing patches from the reconstruction of the
School, the effectiveness of the hump in reducing vehicle speeds has
been reduced.
The existing ramps are within DfT tolerances therefore the highway
maintenance budget cannot be used to re-profile the ramps.
The works to the hump will improve its effectiveness in reducing vehicle
speeds within the existing 20mph Zone.
Improve the effectiveness of the existing traffic calming feature.

Township Priorities Met

Place

Land Owner

Rochdale Council

Public Consultation

Yes

Proposed Source of Funding

Township Revenue

B. ESTIMATE
Assumptions made during preparation of estimate


The scheme content is fully understood by the Township Committee and has the full support of the
Township Committee, especially the local ward councilors.



There will be no amendments to the schemes once commissioning documents have been
approved and signed off.

Risks that may change estimate
 The scheme requires amendments so as to satisfy the requirements of the emergency services or
TfGM.


Ward Councillors require further information, justification or scheme content



Any unforeseen issues during construction

Total Estimated Fees

£170

Total Estimated Works Costs

£1700

Page 16

**Total Cost
Estimate valid for a 6 month period

£1870

Amount Approved by Township

Cost Code

C. TIMESCALES
Estimated Start Date

To be assessed on receipt of the signed commissioning document.

Evidence


A start date will be identified once the commissioning document has been approved and received
by Highways, this will be depend on staff availability and workload.



It is envisaged that a start date will be within 6 months of receiving the commission.



Evidence of the work commencing will be the expenditure of fees

Completion Date

Dependent on start date but will be at least 6 months after
commencement of design

Evidence


Evidence of the completion of works on site and settlement of final account.

D. AUTHORISATION
I have read the terms and conditions provided with this form and agree to the funds being
allocated as approved at Committee
Date Committee Approved Scheme
Signature of Head of Service

Date

Signature of Townships &
Communities Manager

Date

Signature of Township Chair

Date

E. BENEFITS/OUTCOMES (FOR COMPLETION BY HIGHWAYS & ENGINEERING SERVICE ONLY)
TAMP Objectives
Accessibility
Condition
Township Priority

LTP Criteria
Improve Safety
Accident Reduction
Reduce Congestion
Improve Network

** Based on decision to proceed given in (timescale) and including scope/assumptions are correct.
KEY
To be completed by whoever receives the original proposal
To be completed by Service/Provider after discussion with the Township Office
To be completed by Township Councillor/Officer

Page 17

APPENDIX 4B

PENNINES TOWNSHIP FUND 2020/21
APPLICATION FORM

REF
PF/14/20

Please read the Terms & Conditions and Guidance for Applicants. If you need advice or support to
complete your application form, please contact Rochdale Township Office.
SECTION 1 – NAME OF PROJECT
Name of project

Tackling Minds

SECTION 2 - APPLICANT DETAILS
a) Name of organisation

Tackling Minds

b) Type of organisation
Voluntary/
community

Registered
charity

Sports/
leisure club

Limited
company

Private
company

Social
enterprise

Other
type

c) Aims and objectives of your organisation and activities or services it provides
Tackling Minds runs a number of angling events for people with mental health issues, social deprivation,
addiction and recovery, families, disabilities and long-term health conditions. We thrive off introducing
people to the sport. Our aim is to:
1. Increase participation in angling.
2. Increase the numbers of people getting active outdoors through angling.
3. Improve the health and wellbeing of those that take part.
4. Help people and communities develop with skills, education, volunteering and facilities.
5. Connect more people to nature through angling for their wellbeing and to improve the environment.
6. Increase the economic impact of angling and in particular deliver economic benefits in rural
communities and revenue to clubs, fisheries and businesses.
Tackling Minds has a large Facebook audience of over 7,000 Followers that we promote our angling events
to. We work closely with mental health organisations, schools and Social Prescribing Link Workers. We are
inundated with requests to participate in our events on a daily basis. One parent asked:
"Hi Tackling Minds, I've seen your post on Facebook and was seeing if you have anything to offer for my
son. My son
is 14. He has Asperger's which can affect his ability to mix easily with his peers. He is
currently going through an eating disorder and has a low mood which was exacerbated during the lockdown.
Is there anything that could be of help to him??"
Parent
Tackling Minds wants to make a distinctive contribution to people’s health and wellbeing in three ways:
i) We want to incorporate a range of fishing methods that increase activity levels and encourage activity
amongst the inactive, those recovering from illness and older age groups who may not participate in
other sports. For example; Predator Fishing. This type of angling is an excellent source of exercise,
especially in Winter. This type of angling involves actively seeking out the fish in numerous locations on
the water being fished. Repeatedly casting and retrieving the bait to lure the predator, which is a
surprising form of exercise to the upper body.

Page 18
Form RT03

ii)

We want to incorporate the therapeutic engagement that angling brings. In turn, this brings people into
contact with ‘blue-green spaces’, and as a consequence helps maintain positive mental health, provides
stress relief and can support programmes for people experiencing mental illness.
iii) By bringing people together, we want to provide a rich social world that facilitates the relationship
building, connection and participation in social life essential to securing wellbeing and active ageing.
Joint Strategic Needs Assessment (JSNA) identifies key issues affecting the health and wellbeing of our
residents, both now and in the future.
In JSNA, loneliness is measured by the proportion of adult social care users who do not have as much
social contact as they would like. In Rochdale it was 49.1%, above the England average of 45.4%. It is very
clear to see there is a need for a service like ours.
Tackling Minds need to focus on generating maximum income from the sale of company merchandises.
These come in the form of t-shirts, hoodies, baseball caps and mobile phone cases. We have a number of
other ideas for merchandises in the future. The benefits include increased sustainability, and potentially the
earmarking of funds each year to support community projects. We should therefore explore any potential
sources of funds and investments to develop and implement an effective marketing strategy. Any business
development or capital funds should focus on improving our facilities with a view of generating additional
income and making the venues more sustainable in the long term.
Tackling Minds has already produced a number of designs. Through intensive market research, we have
seen that there is a demand for our merchandise.
d) Contact name

David Lyons

e) Contact telephone
f) Contact address and
postcode
g) Email address

fishing@tacklingminds.org

h) Web address

https://www.facebook.com/Tacklingmindsuk/

SECTION 3 – ORGANISATION FINANCES
a) Have you applied for or received a Township grant before?

Yes

No

Yes

No

b) If you have answered yes to question a), please give details below

c) Does more than 50% of your annual base budget/income come
from Rochdale Council?

If yes, detail below the amounts received and Council Services providing budget/income to your
organisation (a copy of your application will be forwarded to your relevant Link Officer for their comments)

Page 19
Form RT03

SECTION 4 – ABOUT THE PROJECT AND JUSTIFICATION
Details of the proposed project and what benefits will this project bring for participants,
organisation, group or wider community?
Evidence based research shows that fishing has been proven to benefit people suffering from mental health.
By getting people more engaged with one another, getting people more active, in the green open spaces,
fishing can benefit people in more ways than one.
Tackling Minds provides a safe, supportive, accessible and affordable environment within which the
community’s diverse population can enjoy a range of cultural, educational, leisure and social activities. This
in turn, helps to nourish and develop their own aspirations, as well as providing a focal point for developing
the cohesion and vitality of the community itself.
Our weekly sessions have become very important to those involved. One parent said “Taking part in the
Tackling Mind events, means that my son has had a chance to make friends. He is sometimes bullied at
school, and finds it hard to socialise. Tackling Minds has made him much happier, and this has helped his
confidence. He is now even enjoying school more.”
– Parent
Tackling Minds has recently joined forces with a number of local organisations, to form a Social Prescribing
Network. Please see attached proposed structure of the network. In January on behalf of the network,
Petrus submitted an application to the NASP, supported by Public Health, 2 GP Practice, the Rochdale
Health Alliance and the 17 partner organisations. This comprises larger organisations such as KYP, Action
Together and Link for Life, as well as smaller micro and grassroots organisations such, as Tackling Minds.
We all have a mutual aim to support the health and wellbeing of our community through a social prescribing
model. Through this network we will develop a peer support training model with a quality framework,
supported by Action Together’s ‘Quality In Action’ Framework, and numerous training partners, to ensure
that all groups offering social prescribing activities are provided the opportunity to upskill; have the
opportunities to link with GPs and social prescribers, and to be supported to provide a range of health and
wellbeing activities, that are safe, evidence backed and place based. This will provide our community with
opportunities to take ownership of their health and wellbeing and to live healthier lives.
Tackling Minds has a network of volunteers that make our events possible. We have a number of licensed
Level 2 Angling Coaches that lead our events, and we also have over 40 volunteers with an extensive
knowledge of fishing, that are on hand to help too.
The Angling Trust has been paramount in helping establish Tackling Minds. They have been extremely
helpful in the startup process, and they have remained an excellent source of support to say the least.
Keeping in regular contact with the Angling Trust’s representatives, Tackling Minds has built a close
relationship with the Trust. We keep them up to date about our future events, participant development and
our continued success stories.
Tackling Minds incorporates the Angling Trust’s Get Fishing Award into our events. The Get Fishing events
are fun, friendly and safe fishing days for families and individuals of all abilities. Our quality assured angling
events helps people discover the wonders of angling. Whether it’s introducing newcomers to the sport,
people heading out for a day with the family, or getting back into angling, our events are a great way to get
out there doing something different and will teach people new outdoor skills.
We use the Get Fishing Awards to help take people on their first steps of their angling journey – from the
unforgettable excitement of catching their first fish, right through to becoming a more experienced angler
who can set up tackle, safely return fish and have the correct Environment Agency fishing license.
We have a library of fishing tackle for people to conquer every species of inland fish, and everything a
person needs to learn more about fishing. Our friendly volunteers will make everyone feel welcome.
One of the Tackling Minds’ unique features is that it is a 'neutral' environment for the many different
communities of interest within the local area, which makes it popular for people from all social and ethnic
backgrounds. This is shown through the number and range of community groups, voluntary organisations
and individuals that regularly use our service. Page 20
Form RT03

Tackling Minds has partnered up with 18 other organisations within the Borough. Turning Point, High Level,
Petrus and Link4Life are 4 of those organisations. We are currently in the process of making services, such
as Tackling Minds more accessible to the people that really need it.
Watch one of our successful events :
https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=HUD5h9mGVGk&t=3s
Tackling Minds has built up a great rapport with a number of different Angling Associations and fisheries
throughout the country. Through our excellent connections we have been granted permission to fish on
numerous venues throughout the North West.
Tackling Minds aims to supply each and every angler that completes the Get Fishing Award with their very
own introductory startup kit. Upon completion of the award, Tackling Minds will use informal and formal
competitions to keep participants engaged, including established championships and new forms such as
‘street fishing’.
To keep people returning on a regular basis, we have a number of concepts that will keep anglers
interested. We will target species or a style of fishing that commonly generates lots of action. On top of that
we will be using numerous venues across the region.
Tackling Minds has been in contact with a number of different organisations throughout each of the
Townships. We will supply further evidence on the different organisations we have contacted if requested.
Two of the organisations that we have contacted, estimate that the amount of people using our service will
be as follows: (please see attached files for supporting documents)
High Level - Drug and Alcohol Service:
Rochdale – 12
Heywood – 6
Middleton – 6
Pennines – 8
PETRUS - Homeless Charity
“At Petrus alone we have over 100 residents who we could promote and support to attend the Tackling
Minds sessions and hundreds more through those attending the Petrus Hub and our external volunteers
who access services such as PIER. I would expect a high level of interest in engaging with this project.
Through the developing network we can extend that promotion effectively to the wider community through
promotion to the two GP surgeries in the pilot with a combined footfall of 5998 people.”
Rachel Bennion
Service Manager PIER, Store, Volunteering and Co Production
As an estimate, we predict that the following service users from PETRUS will be:
Rochdale - 14
Heywood - 8
Middleton - 8
Pennines – 12
Total of both organisations:
Rochdale – 26
Heywood – 14
Middleton – 14
Pennines - 20
Project start date

4/5/2021

Project completion
date

4/2/2022

Page 21
Form RT03

SECTION 5 – PROJECT FINANCES
a) Cost of project

£24,199.15

b) Amount of grant required

£14,373.15

c) Amount from other sources

£9,826

d) Details of other funding
Funder
Rochdale Boroughwide Housing

What they may fund
£4,900

Dates of funding decisions
January/February

Angling Trust (large project fund)

£4,926

January/February

e) Breakdown of proposed expenditure relating to the amount of grant required (Enclose
quotations, cost estimates or extracts from websites/catalogues. At least two quotations will be
required for any items to be funded that will cost £1,000 or more to demonstrate value for money.
Costs for items to include VAT only if your organisation cannot claim VAT back from HM
Revenue and Customs).
Expenditure item

Cost

10 x Fishing chairs @ £12.00
https://www.ikea.com/gb/en/p/nisse-folding-chair-black-30115066/

£120

10 x 4m elasticated whips @ £10.99
https://www.fishingtackleandbait.co.uk/en/Abu-Garcia-SiestaTelescopic-16.aspx

£109.90

5 x Feeder rod and reel combo @ £59.99
https://www.anglingdirect.co.uk/daiwa-d-match-combo

£299.95

5 x Match rod and reel combo @ 59.99
https://www.anglingdirect.co.uk/daiwa-d-match-combo

£299.95

6 x landing net @ £21.95
https://www.anglingdirect.co.uk/drennan-speedex-carp-landing-net

£131.70

6 x landing net handle @ £13.99
https://www.anglingdirect.co.uk/phoenix-extending-metal-landing-nethan

£83.94

4 x unhooking mat @ £19.99
Page 22
https://www.anglingdirect.co.uk/daiwa-black-widow-unhooking-mat

£79.96
Form RT03

6 x rod rest @ £1.99
https://www.anglingdirect.co.uk/dinsmores-economy-v-rod-rest-75cm

£11.94

2 x Rod Holdall @ £29.99
https://www.anglingdirect.co.uk/advanta-endurance-quiver-5rod?gclid=C%20-ABhALEiwAXm6Iyd3iwf_L9Mi7ipQELGQmgI4wyShy6RcTJM_BDoDdBH6xoCB3UQAvD_BwE

£59.98

1 x Fishing tackle carryall @ £40
https://www.anglingdirect.co.uk/daiwa-black-widow-carryall

£40

1 x Net bag @ £39.99
https://www.matchmansupplies.co.uk/brands/prestoninnovations/preston s-competition-eva-net-bag-p0130095

£39.99

fishing tackle box @ £19.49
https://www.amazon.co.uk/Cantilever-Box-Adjustable-CompartmentsLunar/dp/B00XJOCXF4/ref=sr_1_10?dchild=1&keywords=fishing+tackl
e+box&qid=1611140486&s=sports&sr=1-10

£19.49

Replacement fishing tackle

£500

First Aid kit @ £23.55
https://www.amazon.co.uk/210-Piece-First-KitEmergency/dp/B07431BT96/ref=sr_1_1_sspa?_encoding=UTF8&c=ts
&dchild=1&keywords=First+Aid+Kits&qid=1611139479&s=drugstore&s
r=1-1spons&ts_id=2826566031&psc=1&spLa=ZW5jcnlwdGVkUXVhbGlma
WVyPUE4SVMyTkhER0QzTkcmZW5jcnlwdGVkSWQ9QTA2NTg4MzI
xTUdOU0pRSTA4Wks3JmVuY3J5cHRlZEFkSWQ9QTAwMjEzODRS
UUVKR0M0TkkyS1Umd2lkZ2V0TmFtZT1zcF9hdGYmYWN0aW9uPW
NsaWNrUmVkaXJlY3QmZG9Ob3RMb2dDbGljaz10cnVl

£23.55

Academic programmes: (See prices in attached file - Angling Trust will
pay half toward the cost - Prices below are half of the cost)
 Level 1 Angling Coaching Awards = £115 x 10
 Level 2 Angling Coaching Awards = £175 x 10

£1,150
£1,750

Office materials (stationery, printer)

£350

Storage (see quote in attached file)

£784.80

e-Commerce Website design –
1. https://householdquotes.co.uk/website-design-cost-guide/
2. https://authenticstyle.co.uk/how-much-does-an-ecommercewebsite

£2,000

Staff (Angling Coaches) @ £150 per session (4-6 hours) x 30

£4,500

Marketing (Social media Ads and information pamphlets)

£800

Volunteers and participants T-Shirts (see quote in attached file)

£918

Food and drink at events

£300
TOTAL £14,373.15

Page 23
Form RT03

SECTION 6 – SUPPORTING DOCUMENTATION
Please supply the following documents when you submit your application. IF YOU DO NOT SUPPLY
THESE DOCUMENTS, WE WILL NOT BE ABLE TO PROCESS YOUR APPLICATION. Please tick the
boxes to confirm which documents you have attached to this application.
a) Annual accounts and bank statement(s)
b) Constitution/governing document
c) If your project works with children and young people under 18 years old or vulnerable adults, please
confirm your organisation has the following:
Child protection policies and procedures
Yes
N/A
Disclosure and Barring Service (DBS) checked staff and
Yes
N/A
volunteers
d) Quotes/estimates/extracts from websites/catalogues for
proposed expenditure

SECTION 7 - DECLARATION
We, the undersigned agree to:









Abide by Pennines Township Funds Terms and Conditions.
No expenditure being incurred on this project prior to the grant decision being given.
Certify that the information contained in this application is correct and that we are authorised
by the organisation to accept these conditions on their behalf.
Use funds, if granted, only as specified in this application, unless receiving authorisation from
Pennines Township Office to make changes.
Send the invoices/receipts for all payments made with this grant along with the completed
Project Evaluation Form to the Pennines Township Office.
Agree to participate in monitoring, auditing and evaluation related to this fund.
Highlight the support of Pennines Township in all publicity material and agree to Rochdale
Council’s use of the organisation’s name and photographs for promotional purposes.
Inform Pennines Township Office immediately if either signatory leaves the organisation or
can no longer fulfil their responsibilities, or someone else takes over responsibility for the
grant on behalf of the organisation.
Organisation Chair or Treasurer
Contact Person
(Different from Contact Person)

Signature

Signature

Full name

David Lyons

Full name

Jennifer Smith

Position

Director

Position

Director

Date

02/02/2021

Date

02/02/2021

Before you send your application to us, please check that you have:
 answered all the relevant questions and
 enclosed all the information requested:
- Annual accounts
- Constitution/governing document
- Bank statement(s)
- Quotations/cost estimates/extracts from websites/catalogues
- BACS form
We will return incomplete application forms.
Please send your completed application form with supporting documentation to the Pennines
Township Office Email: pennines.township@rochdale.gov.uk and sharron.worrall@rochdale.gov.uk

Page 24
Form RT03

Kingsway And Kirkholt GP Surgeries
Delivery venue and referring partner

Connected to network area leads through the social prescribing team.

Page 25

Financial wellbeing
welfare support
community venue for
clients facing health
inequalities and Covid
risks.
Petrus Hub
KYP

Sport, leisure and
physical Activity
Link 4 Life Various locations
across the borough

Nature and
Environment

Coordinated by a
Project kickstart
Development Worker
across the whole
network.

Petrus PIER
Community
Garden

Arts and Culture
Link 4 Life Touchstones

Delivery model
Leads act as hub venues alongside utilising the GP practices as a delivery
venue.
Financial wellbeing
welfare support
community
Petrus Hub
KYP

Nature and
Environment

Arts and Culture
Link 4 Life Touchstones

Petrus PIER
Community
Garden

Sport, leisure and
physical Activity
Link 4 Life Various locations across
the borough

Page 26

Oversee the network area to engage other organisations within their area of
expertise with support from the development coordinator. E.G micro groups through
community catalysts, Rochdale Hornets, In Bloom, citizens advice, mountain training, something to aim foe.
See partnership table.

Work in partnership with core delivery partners in the following areas.
Training and Quality
Framework
Action Together
KYP
Petrus/The Learning
Foundry

Volunteering and
wider community
Networking
Action Together

Referring partners
Rochdale Health Alliance
Social Prescribing Team
Kingsway and Kirkholt

Evaluation, data
collection and health
outcomes monitoring
Hope Citadel
Shared Health

All of the above co-ordinated by a project development worker

Partnership Mapping – December 2020
Area of
/expertise
Art/
Culture

Nature/
Environment

Physical/
sport/leisure

Financial
wellbeing &
support
Community Venue
Safe accessible spaces

Page 27

Training

Referring
partners

Organisation/Group
Who have directly fed into the
consultation
Link 4 Life Touchstones

Organisations who have
expressed a general
interest
Manchester Camerata

Something to Aim For
Creative Health
Bring Me Sunshine
Petrus – PIER community Garden
Rochdale In Bloom
RBH (community engagement)
Get Up And Grow
Mountain Training
Link 4 Life
Rochdale Hornets

Contact Theatre

Cycling Without Age
Louise/ Deborah yoga/wellbeing
Tracy – nutrition and wellbeing
Petrus - Hub
KYP
Action Together/ Citizens advice
Petrus Hub and PIER
KYP
Link 4 Life facilities
Action Together
KYP
Creative Health (IT)
Social prescribing team

Others we could/should
contact
Rochdale Riverside
(PIER project pre-covid in design phase with RMBC and
library)

Tackling Minds
Ralph resonance centre –
train station walking group

Good Help Project
Access All Areas
The Learning Foundry in
partnership with Petrus

WEA
Rochdale Connections Trust

John Elliot Unit Birch Hill
(already engaged with PIER)
Community Mental Health
Team (already refer to PIER)

Health delivery and engagement

Health
Inequalities/at risk groups

Social Prescribing team and Rochdale
Health Alliance
Kingsway And Kirkholt GP Practices
Shared Health/Hope Citadel
Petrus (existing IAPT with Gaddums,
health services with RHA and HART)

Living Well

Shared Health/Hope Citadel

Homeless Action Response
Team (HART)
RBH Homelessness

other health and wellbeing

Petrus and Housing First
KYP
KYP
Petrus
Link For Life
Tracy – health and nutrition

General Interest
Funding partners

Public Health 20% Matched Funding

Children & Young People

Stroke Association
Health Watch

LGBT Foundation

MIND
Early Break
Rochdale Circle
Youth Service

We are delighted to be working alongside Tackling Minds, whilst the group is new in the
borough I have seen first hand the demand and need for this from our service users who
often request fishing as an activity but due to complex needs often need support to attend,
engage in this activity. Many of our service users have enduring mental health or physical
support needs so it was fantastic to hear of the work that was underway to develop a
provision that specifically supports peoples health and wellbeing and Dave’s enthusiasm
and passion to make it happen shines through.
Petrus were introduced to Tackling Minds through the Community Catalysts to join our
newly formed Social Prescribing Network. Please see attached proposed structure of the
network. In January on behalf of the network Petrus submitted an application to the NASP
supported by Public Health, 2 GP Practice, the Rochdale Health Alliance and the 17 partner
organisations comprising of larger organisations such as KYP, Action Together and Link for
Life as well as smaller micro and grassroots organisations such as Tackling Minds. We all
have a mutual aim to support the health and wellbeing of our community through a social
prescribing model. Through this network we will develop a peer support training model with
a quality framework supported by Action Together’s Quality In Action Framework and
numerous training partners to ensure that all groups offering social prescribing activities
are provided the opportunity to upskill; have the opportunities to link with GPs and social
prescribers and be supported to provide a range of health and wellbeing activities that are
safe, evidence backed and place based to provide our community with opportunities to take
ownership of their health and wellbeing and live healthier lives.
At Petrus alone we have over 100 residents who we could promote and support to attend
the Tackling Minds sessions and hundreds more through those attending the Petrus Hub
and our external volunteers who access services such as PIER. I would expect a high level
of interest in engaging with this project.
Through the developing network we can extend that promotion effectively to the wider
community through promotion to the two GP surgeries in the pilot with a combined footfall
of 5998 people.
I am happy to be contacted further in regards to Tackling Minds Township Application and
can be reached via email rachael.bennion@petrus.org.uk or phone 07970951631
Kindest regards,
Rachael Bennion
Service Manager PIER, Store, Volunteering and Coproduction

Page 28

20th January 2021

To whom it may concern,
I am writing this letter in support of David Lyons who has made contact with our
organisation to ask if he can support some of our Service Users who have mental
health problems through his fishing organisation.
As you know mental health problems are very high in the Borough of Rochdale and
are increasing due the current situation with Covid19. Any opportunity to help
people improve their mental health with outdoor activities should be supported.
The opportunity for people to feel part of something and in the course of that
increase their self-worth, which will in turn improve their mental health, is to be
encouraged and supported.
I am encouraged to know that David is planning this great opportunity where people
may learn a new activity which will help people for a sustained period of time.
Participating in any outdoor activities is, at this moment in time, hard particularly in
team sports. When the restrictions are lifted fishing is one of the activities where
you can feel part of something, connect with others socially and keep socially
distanced. This will no doubt benefit people and the Borough of Rochdale.
Yours sincerely

Callum Jones
Service Manager

Page 29
High Level Northern Trust Registered in England & Wales Charity Registration Number 1106699 Registered address
Champness Hall Drake Street Rochdale OL16 1PB Tel: 01706 860 247 E: highlevel@hlnt.org.uk

Bursary Reference No.
Angling Improvement Fund 2020/21

Coaching Bursary Application

Bursary Summary
The bursary you are applying for is from the Environment Agency and is money from
rod licence sales which is being put back into developing angling. To make the most
of this funding there are several conditions that are attached to completing your
coaching course. These terms and conditions are to ensure that the funding is well
used and has a positive impact on the future of angling.
Terms and Conditions Summary
If you are awarded a coaching bursary, you will be asked to pay your share of the
cost of the course, before starting the qualification. For Angling Support Coach this
is £115.00 and for Level 2 (Angling Lead Coach) the cost is £175.00.
It is important to realise that for Level 2 (Angling Lead Coach) you will also need to
attend a UK Coaching Safeguarding and Protecting Children Course and a three-hour
minimum First Aid course. These are a requirement for achieving the UKCC Level 2
qualification. The two courses are likely to cost roughly £30 each and should be
available through your local County Sports Partnership. We will also supply
information about sourcing suitable training when we acknowledge your application
for a Level 2 course place.
Both course fees include the cost of your coach licence free for the first year. After
you have qualified you will need to apply for a DBS to obtain your licence. This is
also free for coaches who do not charge for coaching; if you are charging for your
services, the DBS check costs £48.80. All DBS checks are processed by the Angling
Trust Coaching Centre. You will need to activate your licence once you have
completed and have been awarded your qualification: this is achieved by returning
the form supplied with your qualification certificate, together with any paperwork
required for your DBS check.
Once you have completed your qualification and activated your licence, you will be
asked to complete 10 voluntary coaching sessions, plus a brief report on how the
coaching bursary has helped and supported the people you coach during this time.
It is a condition of the bursary that you complete all stages, and if this is not
completed within 6 months of the assessment, then you will remain liable for the full
cost of the course.
We will consider any unforeseen circumstances if completing becomes a problem.

Apply for your bursary from
your participation manager.

Complete all paperwork and
pay your half of the course fee.
Attend and complete course.

Apply for coach licence

Please keep pages 1 and 2 for information: complete and return the
remainder of the document. (You may wish to keep a copy of pages 3-7 for your
own records.)

Page 30

Bursary Reference No.
Voluntary Coaching Log:
Venue
Pilsworth Fishery

Activity
Get Fishing Awards

Date
24/10/2020
(This is just an
example, dates are
flexible).

Hours
2

Pilsworth Fishery

GFA

28/10/2020

2

Pilsworth Fishery

GFA

TBC

2

Pilsworth Fishery

TBC

Pilsworth Fishery

TBC

22 Hours

My coaching bursary has helped me to

Page 31

Bursary Reference No.
Angling Improvement Fund Bursary and Coach Agreement
The Angling Trust agrees to award a coach bursary to cover half of the cost of a
Level 1 Angling Support Coach Course/Level 2 Angling Lead Coach, conditional upon
the completion of the qualification, achievement of licensed coach status and
delivery of ten hours’ coaching on a voluntary basis.
I……………………………………………………………………………………… agree to the following terms
and conditions and understand that failure to fulfil the said terms and conditions may
render me liable for the full cost of the course. I agree to:
1. complete all paperwork and return no later than five weeks before the start
date of the course;
2. pay half the cost of the course, namely £115.00 Level 1 Angling Support
Coach or £175.00 Level 2 Angling Lead Coach;
3. complete the qualification, including UK Coaching Safeguarding and Protecting
Children training and a First Aid course for Level 2 Angling Lead Coach;
4. start activation of Coach Licence upon receipt of qualification certificate;
5. deliver 20 hours’ voluntary coaching;
6. write and return a brief report on the impact of your coaching on the people
you have coached.

Name of Bursary Recipient ….??????????……………………………………………...

Signed………………………………………………………………………Date…………………………….

Angling Trust Officer………………………………………………..Date……………………………..

Office Use Only:
Application Received/Deposit Paid………………………………………Date ………………..
Course Reference L1/L2………………………………….Date……………………..……………….
Qualification Certificate……………………………..…..Date………………………………………
Licence Issued………………………………………….……..Date………………………………………
Voluntary Hours/Report………………………………….Date………………………………………
Coaching Centre Manager Sign Off………………………………………Date……………………

Page 32

Bursary Reference No.

Angling Trust Coaching Centre in association with 1st4sport Qualifications
APPLICATION FORM: ANGLING TRUST COACHING COURSE

Level 1 Angling Support Coach 

Level 2 Angling Lead Coach 

Applicant’s personal information
Title

Mr 

Miss 

Mrs 

Date of Birth _ _ / _ _ / _ _ _ _

Ms 

Other . . . . . . . . . . .

Gender

Male  Female 

You must be 16 or over to take the L1 qualification, at least 18 to be awarded a certificate at L2

Forename(s) . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

Please give ALL FORENAMES even if you do not normally use them:
we need this information to access your Unique Learner Number

Surname

....................................................

Preferred forename if different, eg Sam instead of Samuel/Samantha . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .
Postal address

............................
............................

Town/City

............................

Postcode

_____ _____

Tel (landline)

.........

[County . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . ]
Mobile . . . . . . . . .

........

............

Email
Please supply a name and telephone number for a relative, friend or neighbour who could be
contacted in the event of an emergency such as an accident to yourself.
EMERGENCY CONTACT NUMBER

.........

............

Name of emergency contact person

......................................

Details of the specific course for which you wish to apply (if known at this stage)
Venue name and postcode

......................................

Start date

__/__/____

The L1ASC is a generic award, and certificates do not show a specific angling discipline.
However Level 2 is discipline specific and your L2 certificate will be issued showing Coarse,
Game or Sea angling.
Level 2 applicants need to select ONE of the options below:
Coarse



Game



Sea



DECLARATION by applicant: Level 1 ASC £115.00* or Level 2 LAC £175.00*
*The course fee includes tuition, registration, learning and resources, but NOT travel, meals or
accommodation.
I declare that I fully understand the nature of the course for which I am applying and the 1st4sport
qualification that will be awarded to me on successful completion of the course attendance,
tasks and assessment procedures. I have read and hereby accept the Coaching Centre’s
Booking Terms and Conditions.
Signed:. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

Date

Page 33

__/__/____

Bursary Reference No.
Coaching Course Applications: Medical & Special Requirements Questionnaire
The Angling Trust is committed to meeting the needs of anyone wishing to participate in the
coaching of angling. To enable the Coaching Centre to make any necessary provision and
ensure that we can arrange for appropriate facilities and resources to be available, it would be
appreciated if you could supply information about any medical conditions that may be relevant
or any other special requirements.
If you have any disability, condition or special needs which you feel could hinder you from
participating fully in a course, please contact our office and we will put you in touch with an
appropriate person to discuss the matter in confidence. Please complete and return the
questionnaire even if you answer “No” to all questions.
♦ Do you have any allergies?

Yes

If Yes, please give brief details

No

......................................................
......................................................

♦ Do you consider yourself to have a disability?
If Yes, what is the nature of your disability?

Yes

No

...............................................
...............................................

Hearing
Mobility




Learning
Physical





Multiple 

Visual

Prefer not to say



Other, not included above . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .
♦ Are you a wheelchair user?

Yes

No

♦ Do you take any regular medication?

Yes

No

If Yes, please give brief details

.........................................
........................................

You are advised that when attending a coaching course you should ensure that you have sufficient supplies
with you to self-medicate as necessary.

♦ Do you have any condition of which w should make the course tutor aware?
(For example: heart problems, angina, pacemaker; epilepsy; diabetes; difficulties with
reading/writing)
............................................................
............................................................
♦ Do you require any support to help us meet your needs?
(For example: help with mobility, reading/writing)
............................................................
............................................................
You are advised that any request for another person to assist you (eg as scribe or interpreter) will
need to be supported by written confirmation of the condition from which the request arises. This
could be a letter from a doctor, tutor or social worker and should be supplied by the application
deadline for your selected course, so that the Coaching Centre can apply to 1st4sport for
authorisation of adjustment to the assessment process. Please contact our office if you are unsure
how to provide appropriate evidence.

Page 34

Bursary Reference No.
Do you require any special safety equipment or visual aids beyond normal “classroom” provision?
.........................................................
Thank you for completing the medical questionnaire. Your responses will be passed in confidence to
the Coach Educator(s) so that appropriate provision can be made at the venue where you attend
your course.

Use of your personal information
We are required by 1st4sport, the body that awards the qualification, to ask for certain
information including your date of birth and contact details. These data are provided to 1st4sport
and to the tutors, assessors and verifiers who will deliver your course and process the content of
your coursework portfolio. Angling Trust also needs your contact details to keep in touch, supply
you with information about the course that you wish to attend and provide you with the relevant
information and materials.
You may be contacted by the Coaching Centre’s administrators or Coach Educators in
connection with course arrangements but your personal information will not be passed to other
bodies for marketing or sales purposes.
Some of the information you supply will be used to access/verify your Unique Learner Number
(ULN) and update or check your Personal Learning Record. The Skills Funding Agency may share
your ULN and Personal Learning Record with other education related organisations, such as your
careers service, school, college, university, Government Departments and public bodies
responsible for funding your education. Further details of how your information is processed and
shared can be found on the website of the Learning Records Service at:
www.learningrecordsservice.org.uk

Data Protection: authorisation to collect, store and process personal information
I give permission for the Angling Trust to record and store securely the information shown on
this application form for the purpose of enabling me to undertake my selected coaching
qualification.
I undertake to keep the Angling Trust Coaching Centre informed of any changes to my
contact information or conditions/requirements relevant to my completion of the coaching
course.

Signed . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . Date ___ / ___ / _________
Submitting your application
The completed application for your selected course with your remittance or payment instructions
can be submitted either by post or by email (see below for details).
Places on a course will be secured only if an application form has been received at our Ilkeston
office by the stated deadline, with payment of the required fee, instructions to invoice or your
request to be contacted to arrange card payment.
When we process your application, we will send some acknowledgement documents with
information about what happens next, the content of pre-course Welcome Packs, completing
pre-course tasks and approximate timescales for assessment and certification. For Level 2
applicants this will include information about sourcing UK Coaching Safeguarding & Protecting
Children training and appropriate First Aid.

Please note that we can’t allocate you a course place unless you complete and return this
form, even if you have already been given details of a specific event.

Page 35

Bursary Reference No.

Please indicate your payment method



♦ I enclose a cheque/Postal Order made payable to Angling Trust Ltd.



The receipt will be sent to the address you have supplied on this form unless you request otherwise.



♦ Please allow 2-3 days for your form to arrive, then ring 0115 822 4538 to supply
credit/debit card details. [Card details will not be retained once payment has been processed.
The receipt will be sent to the address on page 1 of this form unless you request otherwise.]



♦ I wish to pay by BACS/online transfer: please send an invoice to the address in the
personal information section of this form. You should include the invoice number in your transaction
reference if paying by this method.

♦ Please send an invoice to my sponsor. I understand that if the stated fee is not paid by the
required deadline I may forfeit my place on the selected course.
Details of the person who will be paying the fees and needs to be invoiced:
Name
Address

.
.
.
.
.

.
.
.
.
.

.
.
.
.
.

.
.
.
.
.

.
.
.
.
.

.
.
.
.
.

.
.
.
.
.

.
.
.
.
.

.
.
.
.
.

.
.
.
.
.

.
.
.
.
.

.
.
.
.
.

.
.
.
.
.

.
.
.
.
.

.
.
.
.
.

.
.
.
.
.

.
.
.
.
.

.
.
.
.
.

.
.
.
.
.

.
.
.
.
.

.
.
.
.
.

.
.
.
.
.

.
.
.
.
.

.
.
.
.
.

Postcode

______

______

Email
You should return your completed application form (pages 3 to 7 inclusive) to:
EITHER Angling Trust Coaching Centre
The Old Police Station
Wharncliffe Road
Ilkeston
DE7 5GF
OR
angela.woodgates@anglingtrust.net (please attach form as a Word document, PDF or
JPEG)
Please note that you can’t make a firm booking by telephone, via social media or through a third
party. We need your signed and completed form to prevent the possible transfer of inaccurate
personal details and to ensure that we comply with Data Protection regulations.
If you are posting your application, please ensure that you affix the correct postage for the size,
weight and thickness of your envelope. Royal Mail will not deliver underpaid items without levying
a surcharge which Angling Trust may have to pass on to you. In addition this could delay delivery
of your application and cause it to arrive after the booking deadline for your selected course.
You can find details of posting prices at www.royalmail.com or you can have your item weighed
and measured at your local Post Office.

We need your application no later than five weeks before the start date of your
selected course. If you haven’t yet been offered a specific coaching event, please
send the form as soon as possible anyway, so that we can suggest courses that
might suit your requirements.

Page 36

Page 37

Website
Quote

Prepared for:
David Lyons
Tackling Minds

Created by:

Page 38

This quote provides pricing information for the website design and development services which are
detailed in the attached statement of work. The quotation is valid until 18/02/2021 and may be
accepted at any time prior to that date.

Pricing
Name

Price

Website Design & Setup Work Includes - Custom interface
- Layout, Mockup & Design
- Colors, Fonts
- Website architecture & NAV
- Webpage template design
- Logo design
- Test site
- Content Management System (CMS) integration
- SEO ( Keywords for ranking higher in Google Search)
- Adding Facebook Pixels into site for Facebook Ads
- Google Analytics Integration

£0.00

Website Pages Includes the following pages: Up to 10 Pages to the website and
unlimited products added to your website.

£0.00

Website support for 6 months

£0.00

Total

£1,900.00

This quotation is subject mutually acceptable terms and conditions and payment of the total price
25% upfront and 75% upon completion of development.

Page 39

AGREED AND ACCEPTED:
Tackling Minds
David Lyons

02 / 12 / 2021

02 / 12 / 2021

Page 40

Page 41

Page 42

Tackling Minds

Description

Quantity

Unit Price

VAT

Amount GBP

AS Men's Staple Tee

100.00

3.30

20%

330.00

1 colour print

100.00

0.90

20%

90.00

1 colour print

100.00

0.90

20%

90.00

1 colour print

100.00

0.90

20%

90.00

1 colour print

100.00

0.90

20%

90.00

Standard Screen Setup

4.00

15.00

20%

60.00

Standard Next Day Delivery

1.00

15.00

20%

15.00

Subtotal

765.00

TOTAL VAT 20%

153.00

TOTAL GBP

918.00

Please email us when payment has been made so we can process your order

Page 43

APPENDIX 4C

TOWNSHIP PROJECT BRIEF AND
COMMISSIONING FORM
Township

Pennines

Name of Request Originator

Councillor Andy Kelly

Project Manager & Ext

Chris Woods

Completed by

Chris Woods

Township Ref

Service Ref

PF/15/20

Date Completed

05/02/2021

A. DETAILS OF SCHEME
Scheme Name & Location

Traffic Calming Investigation Report, Willows Lane and Princess Road
Estate

Scheme Description (include
as much information as
possible)

The proposal is for a Traffic Engineer to investigate and report back on
a self-enforcing 20mph scheme for the estate roads of Willows Lane
and Princess Road.

Scheme comments from
Highways

Production of such reports are supported by Highways

Desired Outcome (what is
required by the scheme)

A report with a plan and cost for the potential of implementing a selfenforcing 20mph zone in the local area.

Township Priorities Met

Place

Land Owner

Rochdale Council

Public Consultation

No

Proposed Source of Funding

Township Revenue

B. ESTIMATE
Assumptions made during preparation of estimate


No requirement to undertake public consultation

Risks that may change estimate
 None

Total Estimated Fees

£2,000

Total Estimated Works Costs

£0

Page 44

**Total Cost
Estimate valid for a 6 month period

£2,000

Amount Approved by Township

Cost Code

C. TIMESCALES
Estimated Start Date

01/04/2021

(start date subject to commissioning within three months of application)
Evidence
Start within two months of receiving commission. Evidence: fees being expended on system.

Completion Date

01/08/2021

Evidence
Completion within four months of start date. Evidence: completion of works on site and settlement of final
account

D. AUTHORISATION
I have read the terms and conditions provided with this form and agree to the funds being
allocated as approved at Committee
Date Committee Approved Scheme
Signature of Head of Service

Date

Signature of Townships &
Communities Manager

Date

Signature of Township Chair

Date

E. BENEFITS/OUTCOMES (FOR COMPLETION BY HIGHWAYS & ENGINEERING SERVICE ONLY)
TAMP Objectives
Accessibility
Condition
Township Priority

LTP Criteria
Improve Safety
Accident Reduction
Reduce Congestion
Improve Network

** Based on decision to proceed given in (timescale) and including scope/assumptions are correct.
KEY
To be completed by whoever receives the original proposal
To be completed by Service/Provider after discussion with the Township Office
To be completed by Township Councillor/Officer

Page 45

APPENDIX 4D

TOWNSHIP PROJECT BRIEF AND
COMMISSIONING FORM (2020/21)

Township Ref

Township

Pennines

Name of Request Originator

Littleborough Lakeside Ward Councillors

Project Manager & Ext

Chris Woods

Completed by

Chris Woods

Service Ref

PF/16/20

Date Completed

08/02/2021

A. DETAILS OF SCHEME
Scheme Name & Location

Calder Avenue Area grass verge wooden post protection

Scheme Description (include
as much information as
possible)

To install knee high wooden posts in the grass verges to prevent cars
from parking and destroying the verges along;
Calder Avenue
Moorfield Avenue
Springfield Avenue
Brooklyn Avenue
Mount Avenue

Scheme comments from
Highways

Similar treatments have been used in grass verges across the Borough
in an attempt to the protect the verges from damage caused by
vehicles.

Desired Outcome (what is
required by the scheme)

Reduced damage to grass verges

Township Priorities Met

Place

Land Owner

Rochdale Council

Public Consultation

No

Proposed Source of Funding

Township Revenue

B. ESTIMATE
Assumptions made during preparation of estimate
Ground conditions are ok and the verges are replaced as per standard detail applied elsewhere

Risks that may change estimate
Underground services in the verge.

Total Estimated Fees

£500.00

Page 46

Total Estimated Works Costs

£7,500.00

**Total Cost
Estimate valid for a 6 month period

£8,000.00

Amount Approved by Township

Cost Code

C. TIMESCALES
Estimated Start Date

April 2021

(start date subject to commissioning within three months of application)
Evidence
Works starting on-site.

Completion Date

May 2021

Evidence
Completion within six weeks of start on-site. Evidence: completion of works on site and settlement of final
account

D. AUTHORISATION
I have read the terms and conditions provided with this form and agree to the funds being
allocated as approved at Committee
Date Committee Approved Scheme
Signature of Head of Service

See attached email

Date

Signature of Townships &
Communities Manager

Date

Signature of Township Chair

Date

08/02/2021

E. BENEFITS/OUTCOMES (FOR COMPLETION BY HIGHWAYS & ENGINEERING SERVICE ONLY)
TAMP Objectives
Accessibility
Condition
Township Priority

LTP Criteria
Improve Safety
Accident Reduction
Reduce Congestion
Improve Network

** Based on decision to proceed given in (timescale) and including scope/assumptions are correct.
KEY
To be completed by whoever receives the original proposal
To be completed by Service/Provider after discussion with the Township Office
To be completed by Township Councillor/Officer

Page 47

Page 48

APPENDIX 4E

PENNINES TOWNSHIP FUND 2020/21
APPLICATION FORM

REF
PF/17/20

Please read the Terms & Conditions and Guidance for Applicants. If you need advice or support to
complete your application form, please contact Pennines Township Office.
SECTION 1 – NAME OF PROJECT
Name of project

Artists Portal

SECTION 2 - APPLICANT DETAILS
a) Name of organisation

Create and Connect

b) Type of organisation
Voluntary/
community

Registered
charity

Sports/
leisure club

Limited
company

Private
company

Social
enterprise

Other
type

c) Aims and objectives of your organisation and activities or services it provides
The organisation has been set up to promote artists and art within the Littleborough area. Working with other
organisations we want to encourage artists to live and work in the area. We intend to provide an artists
network, create opportunities to work together, skill share and socialise with like-minded people in
Littleborough.
We want Littleborough to be a creative place to live for all residents and intend to organize and support
creative activities that bring people together
In order to achieve our aims we will
 Hold 3 networking lunches a year
 Apply for funding for the above and other events
 Set up a website containing a portal for artists. For a small fee artists can apply to have their name, an
image and link to their website. This will be juried to maintain a professional standard
 Work with other organisations e.g. LAF, Ebor, Star Tree Studio to create a vibrant art scene in
Littleborough
 Promote Littleborough as a place for artists to live and work at every opportunity.

d) Contact name

Elizabeth White

e) Contact telephone
f) Contact address and
postcode
g) Email address
h) Web address

Page 49
Form PT03

SECTION 3 – ORGANISATION FINANCES
a) Have you applied for or received a Township grant before?

Yes

No

Yes

No

b) If you have answered yes to question a), please give details below

c) Does more than 50% of your annual base budget/income come
from Rochdale Council?

If yes, detail below the amounts received and Council Services providing budget/income to your
organisation (a copy of your application will be forwarded to your relevant Link Officer for their comments)

SECTION 4 – ABOUT THE PROJECT AND JUSTIFICATION
Details of the proposed project and what benefits will this project bring for participants,
organisation, group or wider community?
There is a growing community of artists and makers in the Pennines area. Ebor Studios and Littleborough
Arts Festival have attracted creative people to the area and we want to offer them some support. Currently
there is no register of artists and people and organisations who want to employ them can only do so by an
informal network which inevitably excludes people.
The last year has been particularly difficult both personally and professionally for artists working in the
creative industries particularly those working in their own communities. We want to offer them support and
build this community.
We propose to set up a website which will act as a meeting place for creative people to gain advice, learn of
opportunities and network with other professionals working in the sector. The website will contain a portal
where artists and makers can upload an image and a link to their website so people wanting to employ an
artist can contact them directly. All local artists and makers will be eligible to apply to have their work on the
portal but the work will be juried in order to maintain a professional standard of work.
The portal will be the ideal place for the community to find out more information about creative opportunities,
funding and events. It will also enable them directly to contact artists working in the area. We have
discussed this with Ebor, LAF, Star Tree Studios, and local artists and they are really enthusiastic about this
project.
We want to encourage artists and makers to come to Littleborough to work and live, this is already
happening and we feel that this website/portal will form an import step towards the Pennines becoming a
creative township for the benefit of all the community.

Project start date

1st June 2021

Project completion
date

1st December 2021

Page 50

Form PT03

SECTION 5 – PROJECT FINANCES
a) Cost of project

£3,180

b) Amount of grant required

£3,180

c) Amount from other sources

£0

d) Details of other funding
Funder

What they may fund

Dates of funding decisions

e) Breakdown of proposed expenditure relating to the amount of grant required (Enclose
quotations, cost estimates or extracts from websites/catalogues. At least two quotations will be
required for any items to be funded that will cost £1,000 or more to demonstrate value for money.
Costs for items to include VAT only if your organisation cannot claim VAT back from HM Revenue
and Customs).
Expenditure item

Cost

Website Design

£1250

Domain Name

£10
£90

Hosting
Content management initial set up 60 hours @ £20 per hour

£1200

Marketing 20 hours @ £15

£300

Initial Administration 10 hours @£15

£150

Membership of Artists network for national promotion

£180

Page 51

TOTAL £3,180
Form PT03

Page 52
Form PT03

QUOTE 1

Freelance Web Designer, Developer & SEO

Quotation for Create and Connect

Website for Create and Connect artist’s hub. Hosting/email addresses
Home Page
News Listings
Resources
Contacts
Archive
Content Management system for Artists Profiles including images contact details biog
(possible to be updated by user?) C
Create a website to act as a hub and portal for artists and creative practitioners in the Pennine
Township
Artists to have their own page or listing to provide a resource and opportunity for
commissioners and contacts

Home page to show links to contacts, applications, news. Listing of partners and stakeholders
(arts council, gmca) Mailing list form

£1250 plus hosting

Page 53

Quote 2

27th January 2021
Brief for Create and Connect Web Site
www.createandconnect.org.uk website domain is available with ionos
Website for Create and Connect artist’s hub.
Hosting/email addresses
Home Page
News Listings
Resources
Contacts
Archive
Artists Profiles including images contact details biog (possible to be updated by user?)
Conditions for application and acceptance fees
Create a website to act as a hub and portal for artists and creative practitioners in the Rochdale,
Littleborough area. (and wider area?)
Artists to have their own page or listing to provide a resource and opportunity for commissioners
and contacts
Proforma for artist page?
Home page to show links to contacts, applications, news.
Listing of partners and stakeholders (arts council, gmca)
Mailing list form
Examples
Rogue artist studios www.rastudios.co.uk
Neo:artists studios www.neoartists.co.uk
Awol studios www.awol-studios.co.uk
Paradise works

Set up account for Instagram
Set up account for Twitter?

Page 54

Website hosting and domain
Costs vary enormously, but as an example to use the company you quoted:
https://www.ionos.co.uk/hosting/wordpress-hosting
Their business hosting seems reasonable.
£12 for first year (ex VAT)
£84 annually thereafter (ex VAT)
Domain free for 1 year
£10 annually thereafter (assuming ex. VAT)
There might be a cost for a WP theme if you want something fancy and further costs for plugins
if you want e-commerce of any sort or subscriptions, etc.
I couldn’t vouch for these people. I don’t use them. But this is a good guide for cost. VAT might
need to be considered (always quote ex. VAT as it’s possible it will go up ‘after’ the pandemic).

Design and build
Based on your brief and the examples that you gave, I’d estimate £1000-1500. But this does
depend on how much content you would need me to add. For example, the content could be
populated by someone else once I have the structure and design in place. Particularly the artist’s
pages, but personally I wouldn’t allow individual artists to have access – that way could lie
disaster. I would have the artists submit info and pics via a link on the site, get it checked and
then added.

Page 55

APPENDIX 4F

PENNINES TOWNSHIP FUND 2020/21
APPLICATION FORM

REF
PF/18/20

Please read the Terms & Conditions and Guidance for Applicants. If you need advice or support to
complete your application form, please contact Pennines Township Office.
SECTION 1 – NAME OF PROJECT
Name of project

Dry Stone wall repair at St John’s Church, Smallbridge

SECTION 2 - APPLICANT DETAILS
a) Name of organisation

Benefice of Dearnley, Wardle & Smallbridge, St John’s Smallbridge

b) Type of organisation
Voluntary/
community

Registered
charity

Sports/
leisure club

Limited
company

Private
company

Social
enterprise

Other
type

c) Aims and objectives of your organisation and activities or services it provides
The Church of England Benefice of Dearnley, Wardle & Smallbridge in the Borough of Rochdale consists of
three Anglican parishes of St Andrew’s Dearnley, St James, Wardle (Now using the Wardle Methodist
Chapel as Wardle Village Church) & St John’s Smallbridge.

This graveyard at St John’s is an important place within its community, with many visitors paying their
respects to loved ones buried there.
The Benefice aims to provide a safe place for visitors at St John’s Church and hopes to improve the
graveyard in the coming years through a volunteer group. (Nothing started due to Covid 19)

d) Contact name

The Revd Rachel Battershell

e) Contact telephone
f) Contact address and
postcode

g) Email address
h) Web address

https://www.standrewsdearnley.co.uk/

Page 56

Form PT03

SECTION 3 – ORGANISATION FINANCES
a) Have you applied for or received a Township grant before?

Yes

No

Yes

No

b) If you have answered yes to question a), please give details below
Not to my Knowledge.

c) Does more than 50% of your annual base budget/income come
from Rochdale Council?

If yes, detail below the amounts received and Council Services providing budget/income to your
organisation (a copy of your application will be forwarded to your relevant Link Officer for their comments)

SECTION 4 – ABOUT THE PROJECT AND JUSTIFICATION
Details of the proposed project and what benefits will this project bring for participants,
organisation, group or wider community?
The benefice has the responsibility to maintain the graveyards of two churches that are closed, including St
James Wardle and St John’s Smallbridge but does not have any funding or support to do this work. The two
remaining congregations at Wardle Village Church and St Andrew’s Church Dearnley currently fund the
maintenance of these two graveyards. St John’s church itself does not have any bank account or funds to
pay for ongoing repairs. The Diocese of Manchester is responsible for the Church building only, so is unable
to assist at this time.
The graveyard at St John’s has been neglected since its closure over 10 years ago. There are no funds
available to repair the dry stone wall within the graveyard. Part of the east wall has collapsed into the
graveyard and is in need of urgent repair.
There is a hope when Covid is over to start a community group to maintain the Church yard moving forward.
The graveyard needs to be a safe environment for visitors and a place that you can sit and remember loved
ones.
I have only attached one quote for this repair as I have not found another person who can repair this as it is
a dying skill.

Project start date

ASAP

Project completion
date

ASAP

Page 57

Form PT03

SECTION 5 – PROJECT FINANCES
a) Cost of project

£1000.00

b) Amount of grant required

£1000.00

c) Amount from other sources

£ Nil

d) Details of other funding
Funder

What they may fund

Dates of funding decisions

e) Breakdown of proposed expenditure relating to the amount of grant required (Enclose
quotations, cost estimates or extracts from websites/catalogues. At least two quotations will be
required for any items to be funded that will cost £1,000 or more to demonstrate value for money.
Costs for items to include VAT only if your organisation cannot claim VAT back from HM Revenue
and Customs).
Expenditure item

Cost

Repair to Dry stone wall in Graveyard

£1000.00

Page 58

TOTAL £1000.00
Form PT03

x
x

Page 59
Form PT03

Page 60

Quotation

02.06.2020
Reverend Rachel
St John The Baptist Church
Old Brow Lane
Smallbridge
Rochdale
OL15 2QG

Work To Be Done
•
•
•

Cost

Repair of collapsed wall in graveyard.
Rebuilding of graveyard wall from neighbours garden
due to excessive movement which will result in collapse,
if not attended too.
Price includes all materials needed to complete work

TOTAL

£1000.00

£1000.00

Yours sincerely

Page 61

APPENDIX 4G

TOWNSHIP PROJECT BRIEF AND
COMMISSIONING FORM
Township

Pennines

Name of Request Originator

Resident

Project Manager & Ext

Nathan McKendrey

Completed by

Emma Hartley

Township Ref

Service Ref

PTC/09/20

HP-008611

Date Completed

15/09/2020

A. DETAILS OF SCHEME
Scheme Name & Location

Clough Street & Heath Road - No Waiting At Any Time Restrictions

Scheme Description (include
as much information as
possible)

A resident has reported problems with vehicles double parking on
Clough Street from its junction with Ramsden Road up to and including
its junction with Heath Road, many of the vehicles often park wholly or
partially on the footways forcing pedestrians to walk in the carriageway.
Vehicles are parked in such a way that obstructs sight lines and
reduces the width of the carriageway causing an obstruction to other
road users and a hazard to emergency vehicles. The only solution is to
prevent parking by way of introducing No Waiting at Any Time
restrictions at the junction.
It is proposed that No Waiting at Any Time restrictions are introduced to
the southerly side of Clough Street from its junction with Ramsden
Road for a distance of 80 metres in a westerly direction.

Scheme comments from
Highways
Desired Outcome (what is
required by the scheme)

It would also be beneficial to continue these restrictions for a distance
of 10 metres into both sides of Heath Road to protect this junction from
any obstructions and to keep sight lines clear. Please refer to the
attached plan.
Highways support the safe and efficient movement of traffic along its
highway network.
Safe movement of vehicles with unobstructed visibility.

Township Priorities Met

Place

Land Owner

Rochdale Council

Public Consultation

Yes

Proposed Source of Funding

Township Revenue

B. ESTIMATE
Assumptions made during preparation of estimate






The scheme content is fully understood by the Township Committee and has the full support of the
Township Committee, especially the local ward councilors.
There will be no amendments to the schemes once commissioning documents have been
approved and signed off.
The promotion of a Traffic Order is a statutory process and must be completed accordingly.
The estimate does not include for dealing with or reporting back to committee any objections
received during the legal process. To deal with objections may increase the cost due to staff time
having to be expended.
This estimate assumes that there will be no major amendments made to scheme at committee
Page 62
resulting the scheme requiring re-advertising.

Risks that may change estimate
 Objections being received during the legal process or amendments made to the scheme during its
development will result in additional costs.
 The scheme requires amendments so as to satisfy the requirements of the emergency services or
TfGM.
 Ward Councillors require further information, justification or scheme content.
Total Estimated Fees

£3500

Total Estimated Works Costs

£500

**Total Cost
Estimate valid for a 6 month period

£4000

Amount Approved by Township

Cost Code

C. TIMESCALES
Estimated Start Date

To be assessed on receipt of the signed commissioning document.

Evidence


A start date will be identified once the commissioning document has been approved and received
by Highways, this will be depend on staff availability and workload.
 It is envisaged that a start date will be within 12 months of receiving the commission.
 Evidence of the work commencing will be the expenditure of fees
Dependent on start date but will be at least 6 months after
Completion Date
commencement of design
Evidence




A completion date will be dependent on the availability of staff both in Highways and Legal.
It will also be dependent on the level of objection should that be the case.
Evidence of the completion of works on site and settlement of final account.

D. AUTHORISATION
I have read the terms and conditions provided with this form and agree to the funds being
allocated as approved at Committee
Date Committee Approved Scheme
Signature of Head of Service

Date

Signature of Townships &
Communities Manager

Date

Signature of Township Chair

Date

E. BENEFITS/OUTCOMES (FOR COMPLETION BY HIGHWAYS & ENGINEERING SERVICE ONLY)
TAMP Objectives
Accessibility
Condition
Township Priority

/

LTP Criteria
Improve Safety
Accident Reduction
Reduce Congestion
Improve Network

** Based on decision to proceed given in (timescale) and including scope/assumptions are correct.
KEY
To be completed by whoever receives the original proposal
To be completed by Service/Provider after discussion with the Township Office
To be completed by Township Councillor/Officer

Page 63

/
/
/

85

Ground

75

88

7 5b

16

75a

Sports Facility
10

73a 73b

ay Area

UGH STREET

1

N ST

73

O
JACKS

2

R

A
O

D

61 a 6 1

TH
A
HE

11
Drawing Title:
Clough Street & Heath Road,
Wardle - Proposed No Waiting at
Any Time.

© Crown copyright. All rights reserved
Rochdale Metropolitan Borough Council
Licence No. LA076279 2020

NETWORK MANAGEMENT

Existing No Waiting at Any Time.
HIGHWAYS AND ENGINEERING
Proposed No Waiting at Any
Time.

Page 64

SCALE
DATE

1 : 500
15/09/2020

DRAWING No.
DRAWN BY

EH

LATE ITEMS
PENNINES TOWNSHIP FUNDS 2020/21
Pennines Township Projects Fund 2020/21 - Proposed projects for decision
Fund Criteria & Request
Priorities Met
Originator

Ref No

Name of Project

PF/19/20

Pennines
Yes
Rochdale Cycling
£10,289
Township
People
Without Age
Rochdale Cycling Without Age propose to acquire a specially adapted bicycle (Trishaw) to enable older people, initially from the Pennines Township area, to participate in
bike rides in parks and the countryside. The project aims to address loneliness, social isolation and the wellbeing of older people with limited mobility in the community as
the Trishaw rides will give them the opportunity to meet people and enjoy nature in local green spaces. Younger people with physical or learning disabilities will also be
able to access the rides. The free Trishaw rides will be provided by volunteer ‘pilots’ who will be trained and DBS checked. The number and availability of volunteer ‘pilots’
will determine the number of bike rides offered with the intention of the rides being for 1 to 1.5 hours duration with the initial route around the Hollingworth Lake area.
Taster sessions and events to attract both passengers and ‘pilots’ will be held once lockdown and social distancing measures have been lifted. (Application form at
Appendix 5A)

Project
Description

Ward

Cycling without age

Page 65

Pennines
Yes
Littleborough Arts
£2,385
Township
People
Festival
Littleborough Arts Festival CIO aims to revive and extend the festival both in terms of its scope (arts) and its reach (inclusivity and engagement) with their overall plan in the
next couple of years to boost arts activity, participation, capacity and confidence in and around Littleborough and the wider Pennines Township, both in response to the
covid pandemic and recovery and in preparation for the 2022 Littleborough Arts Festival. Online arts workshops across a variety of arts media and through local artists
and facilitators have been delivered during early 2021 as the Littleborough Arts Festival had to be cancelled due to the Covid pandemic. Littleborough Arts Festival CIO
propose to double their current capacity of workshops through the provision of blended learning (online and safe face to face) to enable 60 local people to participate in art.
(Application form at Appendix 5B)

Risk implication None

Page 1 of 1

Agenda Item 6a

Risk implication None
PF/20/20
Littleborough Arts Festival - Covid recovery and looking forward
Project
Description

Cost

APPENDIX 5A

PENNINES TOWNSHIP FUND 2020/21
APPLICATION FORM

REF
PF/19/20

Please read the Terms & Conditions and Guidance for Applicants. If you need advice or support to
complete your application form, please contact Pennines Township Office.
SECTION 1 – NAME OF PROJECT
Name of project

Cycling Without Age

SECTION 2 - APPLICANT DETAILS
a) Name of organisation

Rochdale Cycling Without Age

b) Type of organisation
Voluntary/
community

Registered
charity

Sports/
leisure club

Limited
company

Private
company

Social
enterprise

Other
type

c) Aims and objectives of your organisation and activities or services it provides
Rochdale Cycling Without Age is a start-up voluntarily organisation which is trying to access funding to
purchase a specially adapted bicycle (Trishaw) to take older people, initially from the Pennines Township
area, on bike rides in parks or country areas. The specially adapted bicycle we hope to purchase will enable
lonely, older people to access bike rides so that they can feel the wind in their hair, connect with nature,
connect with others and improve their mental wellbeing.
The ethos of the organisation is to give something back to the communities of the borough and particularly
to older people in the community – giving something back to those who have given to us.
The Trishaw rides will be free and fully insured. The Trishaws are built to a high standard with power assist
and are comfortable and safe for older people. The Trishaw rides will be provided by volunteer ‘pilots’ who
will be fully trained and DBS checked. The ‘pilots’ will also benefit from their role with improvements in their
own wellbeing through the act of giving, connecting with other people and through increased physical
exercise. Older people will themselves be encouraged to be pilots where appropriate.
The project is part of a global Cycling Without Age social movement that started in Copenhagen in 2012 and
is represented in 50 countries providing rides to more than 1.5 million people. Whilst the movement provides
advice and support in setting up and running a project it does not provide any funding to purchase Trishaws
or run the project.
The initial aim of the organisation is to start small, with one Trishaw, to support older people who live in
Pennines Township to go on bike rides. Based on the success of the project the aim will then be to raise
funds to purchase further Trishaws to support older people in other parts of the borough to access rides. The
intention is for the rides to be between 1 and 1.5 hours in total and the initial route is likely to be on the part
around Hollingworth Lake that is public bridleway. All routes will be green routes and will be risk assessed
for safety before they are offered.
The number of rides offered will be linked to the number and availability of volunteer ‘pilots’. A few people
have already expressed an interest in being a pilot and we anticipate starting with a small number of rides,
increasing the number as our profile rises and we can publicise the project. We hope to hold taster sessions
and events once lockdown and social distancing measures have been lifted in order to attract both
passengers and ‘pilots’.

Page 66

Form PT03

If you would like to find out more about Cycling Without Age the following video provides some insight into
how it works and the benefits of the rides for older people.
https://www.facebook.com/watch/?v=10154985315840787
d) Contact name

Dianne David

e) Contact telephone
f) Contact address and
postcode
g) Email address

rochdale@cyclingwithoutage.org.uk

h) Web address

Not available at present. Cycling Without Age UK are developing the UK
website and we will be able to have a free page on the website once it has
been developed, thereby keeping costs down.

SECTION 3 – ORGANISATION FINANCES
a) Have you applied for or received a Township grant before?

Yes

No

b) If you have answered yes to question a), please give details below

Page 67
Form PT03

c) Does more than 50% of your annual base budget/income come
from Rochdale Council?

Yes

No

If yes, detail below the amounts received and Council Services providing budget/income to your
organisation (a copy of your application will be forwarded to your relevant Link Officer for their comments)

SECTION 4 – ABOUT THE PROJECT AND JUSTIFICATION
Details of the proposed project and what benefits will this project bring for participants,
organisation, group or wider community?
About the Project
The project is focused on the impact of loneliness and social isolation on the wellbeing of older people with
limited mobility in the community and how this can be relieved by providing them with access to green
spaces through accessible bicycle rides where they can feel the wind in their hair, connect with nature and
with other people. Unfortunately, people with limited mobility cannot access green space under their own
steam. This is particularly important in current circumstances as older people have been disproportionately
affected by Covid-19, with many shielding in isolation, either through necessity or choice, for prolonged
periods as the borough has only had a few weeks of respite from lockdown in the past 12 months.
The Trishaw rides will be completely free and fully insured. The Trishaws are built to a high standard with
power assist, are comfortable to support older people and the rides will take place away from main roads.
Passengers will be assisted to travel to and from the start of the rides through the Volunteer Drivers scheme
which does charge for the service but at a reduced rate. Whilst the project is mainly for older people,
younger people with physical or learning disabilities will also be able to access the rides. The Trishaw rides
will be provided by volunteer ‘pilots’ who will be fully trained and DBS checked. The ‘pilots’ will also benefit
from their role with improvements in their own wellbeing through the act of giving, connecting with other
people and through increased physical exercise. We already have a number of people interested in being
volunteer pilots and once we have accessed sufficient funding to purchase our first Trishaw we will
commence a recruitment drive to increase the number of volunteer pilots as this will determine the amount
of rides we will be able to provide.
Rochdale Cycling Without Age is a small voluntary organisation which is run solely by volunteers to keep the
running costs to a minimum. The organisation consists of four Board members and has developed a range
of policies to support the organisation in the delivery of its aims, including a constitution. The intention is to
apply to the Charity Commission in the next few weeks to register the organisation as a Charitable
Incorporated Organisation and this is reflected in the constitution.
We have raised some funds towards the costs of the Trishaw and running costs with £1,675 being raised to
date which will cover the costs of insurance and provide cashflow for any unexpected costs.
We have links with local Care Homes and Independent Living Schemes and have liaised with Adult Social
Care and RBH. Once we have a Trishaw it is our intention to leaflet areas to identify older people who live
alone and would like to go on a bike ride and we will contact local doctors to identify suitable referrals.
Justification for the Project
Research
There is a range of academic research that demonstrates the need for community based preventative
Page 68
projects like Cycling Without Age to address social isolation and loneliness in older people. There is also a
Form PT03

growing amount of research into the benefits that the Cycling Without Age movement has on Older people.
In addition, there is some evidence that the impact of Covid-19 has increased empathy with the plight of
people who cannot get out of their homes and there is some support for changing the way society operates
with more emphasis on communities helping each other and supporting those who are more vulnerable.
The impact of Social Isolation and Loneliness
The Campaign to EndLoneliness website identifies the following facts:






There are nine million lonely people in the UK and four million of them are older people.
The number of over 50’s experiencing loneliness is set to reach two million by 2025/26. This
compares to around 1.4 million in 2016/17 – a 49% increase in 10 years.
Half a million older people go at least five or six days a week without seeing or speaking to anyone at
all.
Well over half (59%) of those aged 85 and over and 38% of those aged 75 – 84 live alone.
Two fifths of older people (about 3.9 million) say the television is their main company.

The Campaign to EndLoneliness website also outlines the health risks to individuals that the above facts
pose:








Loneliness is likely to increase your risk of death by 25%.
Loneliness, living alone and poor social connections are as bad for your health as smoking 15
cigarettes a day.
Loneliness is worse for you than obesity.
Loneliness and social isolation are associated with an increased risk of developing coronary heart
disease and stroke.
Loneliness increases the risk of high blood pressure.
Loneliness with severe depression is associated with early mortality and loneliness is a risk factor for
depression in later life.
Loneliness and social isolation put individuals at greater risk of cognitive decline and dementia.

Addressing loneliness in older people benefits wider society by reducing the need for more acute and more
costly health and social care services. This is supported by the SCIE (Social Care Institute for Excellence)
report ‘At a glance 60: Preventing loneliness and social isolation among Older People May 2012’ which
states:
‘Health issues arising from loneliness and isolation add pressure on statutory health and social care
services. By intervening in this issue, we can improve older people’s quality of life, while limiting dependence
on more costly services’.
The report calls for services to be developed that alleviate loneliness and improve the quality of life of older
people, reducing their dependency on more costly services. Rochdale Cycling Without Age fits this remit.
The Benefits of setting up Cycling Without Age Chapters:
Cycling Without Age is a global initiative in which trained volunteers take older people on bike rides on
specially designed Trishaws.
A number of research studies have been carried out that demonstrate the positive impact that the Trishaw
rides have on the wellbeing of older people. Studies in Wisconsin identified that older people appreciated the
fresh air, socialising and relaxing that the Cycling Without Age project allowed them (McNeil and Westphal
2018). A quantitative follow up study revealed that after four months of participation (two rides per week),
older adults displayed significant improvements in mental wellbeing (McNeil and Westphal, 2018; McNeil
and Westphal, 2019).
Similar positive results have also been reported in relation to self-reported quality of life e.g. following a 12
week intervention programme in Barcelona in which participants took part in regular Trishaw rides, there
was a significant improvement in quality of life (Salas,
2018).
Page
69
Form PT03

Quantitative research to assess the impact of Cycling Without Age on mood and wellbeing was carried out
by Alan Gow in Scotland in 2020. (Gray and Gow, 2020). This study used two different methods of
assessing the mood and wellbeing of care home residents before and after they went on Trishaw rides and
on days when they did not go on a Trishaw ride. The conclusion of the study was that there was a
relationship between participation in the Cycling Without Age activity and positive short-term changes in
mood and wellbeing. Further research is taking place into the long-term positive impacts of participating in
Cycling Without Age activity.
There is also evidence to support the view that access to green spaces has a positive impact on mental
wellbeing. The Mental Health Foundation highlights in its ‘Thriving with Nature Guide’ that research has
found a link between access to green space and a reduced risk of mental health problems, improved mood
and increased life satisfaction.
Relevant Statistics for Rochdale Borough:
Table 1 below demonstrates that according to the Office of National Statistics (ONS) Mid-Year Population
Estimates for June 2019 there are 36,615 people aged over 65 in the borough of Rochdale who may benefit
from accessing a bicycle ride with Rochdale Cycling Without Age.
Table 1 Population Distribution 65+ Rochdale Borough

65 to 69
70 to 74
75 to 79
80 to 84
85 and Over
Total

Persons
10797
9,939
6,706
4,754
4,419
36,615

Male
5354
4,799
3,089
2,083
1,594
16,919

Female
5443
5,140
3,617
2,671
2,825
19,696

Source of Data: Office for National Statistics Mid-Year Estimates June 2019

Table two below outlines the number of people over 65 years in each of the wards in Pennines Township
who lived alone when the 2011 Census was carried out. Whilst these figures are out of date ONS statistics
and projections have long shown that the UK’s population is ageing with projections carried out in 2018
demonstrating that in 50 years’ time, there are likely to be an additional 8.6 million people aged 65 years and
over – a population roughly the size of London. The likelihood is, therefore, that the figures in Table 2 will
have at the least remained similar or, as is more likely, will have increased since 2011.
The Table demonstrates that in 2011 2,505 people over the age of 65 in Pennines Township lived alone
many of whom will be at risk of loneliness and social isolation. There are, therefore, many older people in
the Pennines Township who could benefit from accessing a bicycle ride provided by Rochdale Cycling
Without Age.

Table Two: Population Distribution of 65+ Living Alone in Pennines Township

2011 Census Merged ward
Littleborough Lakeside
Milnrow and Newhey
Smallbridge and Firgrove
Wardle and West
Littleborough
Total

Age 65
to 69
153
145
199
108
605

Age
70 to
74
133
128
153
97
511

Age
75 to
79
126
132
144
105
507

Page 70

Age 80 to
84
124
115
120
97
456

Age 85
and
over
118
109
125
74
426

Total
654
629
741
481
2,505

Form PT03

Table 3 outlines the percentage of people in each age group living alone in Rochdale Borough utilising the
census data and the ONS Mid-Year Estimates 2019. This demonstrates that as people age they are more
likely to live alone with 53% of the 80 -84 year old age group and 55% of the 85 years and over age group
living alone.
Table 3: Percentage of Older People Living Alone.
People Living
Alone
Persons
65 to 69
70 to 74
75 to 79
80 to 84
85 and Over
Total

2,903
2,767
2,807
2,530
2,422
13,429

10797
9,939
6,706
4,754
4,419
36,615

Percentage of
age group
living alone
27
28
42
53
55
37

Rochdale Cycling Without Age Research:
Rochdale Cycling Without Age has carried out surveys locally through social media and via various local
voluntary organisations. The results are detailed below:





59% of respondents who are aged 50+ are feeling isolated.
69% have mobility issues.
25% do not go out of the house at all.
64% would like to go on a Trishaw ride.

The response to the idea has been very positive as is reflected by some of the comments below that people
left on the survey:
“As a young able bodied person my mum would like nothing more than walking and feeling the wind
in her hair. To have the chance of replicating that feeling would be wonderful for her. “
“I think this would be a marvellous idea for people who are unable to walk or cycle themselves and
are unable to get out the same.”
“What an amazing idea for people who can’t get out much, particularly for the elderly in care homes”
Overall, there is substantial evidence to support Rochdale Cycling Without Ages aim to provide lonely and
socially isolated older people with limited mobility access to bicycle rides.

Project start date

End of April/ beginning of May
2021

Project completion
date

Ongoing project

Page 71
Form PT03

SECTION 5 – PROJECT FINANCES
a) Cost of project

£11,036

b) Amount of grant required

£10,289

c) Amount from other sources

£747

d) Details of other funding
Funder
Crowdfunding

What they may fund
Insurance costs and cashflow

Dates of funding decisions
Amount already achieved.

e) Breakdown of proposed expenditure relating to the amount of grant required (Enclose
quotations, cost estimates or extracts from websites/catalogues. At least two quotations will be
required for any items to be funded that will cost £1,000 or more to demonstrate value for money.
Costs for items to include VAT only if your organisation cannot claim VAT back from HM Revenue
and Customs).
Expenditure item

Cost

Trishaw

8,244

Additional battery

790

Waterproof blanket

286

Lock

49

Delivery, set up and training

250

DBS checks for pilots 20 x £23

460

3 x bicycle helmets

30

Publishing 2,000 A5 leaflets

90

Telephone costs

50

Registration with the Information Commissioner

40

Page 72

TOTAL 10,289
Form PT03

SECTION 6 – SUPPORTING DOCUMENTATION
Please supply the following documents when you submit your application. IF YOU DO NOT SUPPLY
THESE DOCUMENTS, WE WILL NOT BE ABLE TO PROCESS YOUR APPLICATION. Please tick the
boxes to confirm which documents you have attached to this application.
a) Annual accounts and bank statement(s)
b) Constitution/governing document
c) If your project works with children and young people under 18 years old or vulnerable adults, please
confirm your organisation has the following:
Child protection policies and procedures
Yes
N/A
Disclosure & Barring Service (DBS) checked staff and
Yes
N/A
.volunteers
d) Quotes/estimates/extracts from websites/catalogues for
proposed expenditure

SECTION 7 - DECLARATION
We, the undersigned agree to:









Abide by Pennines Township Funds Terms and Conditions.
No expenditure being incurred on this project prior to the grant decision being given.
Certify that the information contained in this application is correct and that we are authorised
by the organisation to accept these conditions on their behalf.
Use funds, if granted, only as specified in this application, unless receiving authorisation from
Pennines Township Office to make changes.
Send the invoices/receipts for all payments made with this grant along with the completed
Project Evaluation Form to the Pennines Township Office.
Agree to participate in monitoring, auditing and evaluation related to this fund.
Highlight the support of Pennines Township in all publicity material and agree to Rochdale
Council’s use of the organisation’s name and photographs for promotional purposes.
Inform Pennines Township Office immediately if either signatory leaves the organisation or
can no longer fulfil their responsibilities, or someone else takes over responsibility for the
grant on behalf of the organisation.
Organisation Chair or Treasurer
Contact Person
(Different from Contact Person)

Signature

Signature

Full name

Dianne David

Full name

Jan Rutters

Position

Chair

Position

Treasurer

Date

23.02.2021

Date

23.02.2021

Before you send your application to us, please check that you have:
 answered all the relevant questions and
 enclosed all the information requested:
- Annual accounts
- Constitution/governing document
- Bank statement(s)
- Quotations/cost estimates/extracts from websites/catalogues
- BACS form
We will return incomplete application forms.
Please send your completed application form and supporting documentation to the Pennines
Township Office Email: pennines.township@rochdale.gov.uk and sharron.worrall@rochdale.gov.uk

Page 73
Form PT03

Quote 1

LIKE FOR LIKE

Telephone Quote: Thank you for allowing us to quote
Invoice Date:
Customer Details: Diane
ADDRESS:
Contact :

Bank Details:
Account Name
Sort code
Account Number

QUOTE DESCRIPTION
ITEM

Page 74

E - Triobike - TAXI - including VAT
Brexit extra logistic costs/import duties @ 23rd November

price includes:
Personal delivery
Rear drive system with 36v 12.8 ah battery
Shimano Deore 9 Speed gears
Rear rack for battery if rear drive electric assist system
2 front lights and rear battery red light
Frame colour: WHITE or BLACK FRAME

Tektro hydraulic disc brakes on front with parking lock,
Shimano hydraulic disc brake on rear
Hood - RED

TOTAL COST

COST - £

QUANTITY

1
1

6,850
395

£6,850.00
£395.00

PROMOVEC REAR WHEEL DRIVE E ASSIST 250W OPTION

E ASSIST UPGRADE OPTIONS
upgrade to mid drive Brose more powerful for steeper hills +£999

1

999

£999.00

1

790

£790.00

SHIMANO DEORE 9 or SHIMANO NEXUS 8

36v battery 13.9ah
Spare Batteries
Please note that these prices are when ordered with the bike or on another
shipment. Shipping of batteries alone from Denmark for mid drive is £350

Page 75

Spare Battery Rear drive models
spare battery +£760 REAR DRIVE 250W - 36V 12.8AH
spare battery +£799 REAR DRIVE 250W - 36V 13.6AH
spare battery MID DRIVE
spare battery MID DRIVE - 36V 612WH - + £790
Additional chargers for spare batteries
Spare chargers for both systems - £90
GEARS:
Shimano Deore 9 speeds
PROMOVEC 250W – geared
BATTERY: Li-Ion cells, 36V – 490 Wh – 12.8 Ah
E-SYSTEM WARRANTY: 2 years
ACCESSORIES

OPTIONAL WATERPROOF PASSENGER BLANKET - RED

1

£286

£286.00

1

£49

£49.00

Insurance Approved Locks
kryptonite motorcycle 150cm lock - £169
Gold rated D lock - £49
ADDITIONAL EXTRAS
EXTRA STEERING DAMPER - +£90

Total E-Triobike Taxi

Page 76

Fully Assembled Delivery by us

Total E-Triobike NET
VAT @ 20%

Accessories for ALL models -

www.

prices are for delivery with your purchase

Email enquiries -

Registered Office:
Registered in England number:
Returns - 14 days unused - return postage at cost of customer - £450/bike
The bikes remain the property of
until full payment has been made

£9,369.00
£250.00

£9,619.00

Quote 2
Dianne David

UK

QUOTE
When you order your trishaw from
, you support
the global movement Cycling Without Age and their efforts to give
elders the right to wind in their hair.

No. Text

Quantity Unit

60 The Chat from Van Raam, torque
60Nm, 250W
16 Warm, weather-proof Rigmor
Wiberg blanket
2 Freight, handling & insurance
3 Discount for first
service/maintenance

Price per unit

Price

1 pcs.

8.045,00

8.045,00

1 pcs.

250,00

250,00

1 pcs.
1 pcs.

1.200,00
-100,00

1.200,00
-100,00

(Amount, VAT exempt:0,00 - Amount , subj. to VAT: 9.395,00)

Valid 2 weeks from date of issue

Page 77
Tel:

-

No. .......................:
Date .....................: 10.11.2020
Client no. ...............:
Page .....................: 1 of 1

Sub total :

9.395,00

25,00% VAT :

2.348,75

Total EUR :

11.743,75

Page 78

Estimated cost for bicycle helmets:

Page 79

Dear Dianne,
Thank you for your inquiry, please find details of our quote below:

Quote no:
Title:
Finished size:
Printing:
Material:
Quantity:
Origination:
Finishing:
Delivery:
Timing:
PRICE:

LEAFLETS
A5
Full colour printed 1 side only
130gsm Gloss
1,000
Suitable files to our specification.
Trim to size. Pack in suitable cartons.
One UK mainland address (delivery included in cost).
3 working days from PDF proof approval.
1,000 = £45.00 zero VAT

Delivery is included in the above costs
• We also offer photo retouching, design and artwork if required.
• VAT is not included and will be charged where applicable.
• Terms: Pre payment with PDF proof approval..
• To proceed with this quote please return this email with confirmation or provide a purchase order.
• Please do not hesitate to contact me for clarification or any queries.
Regards
All quotations and orders are subject to sight of copy and our conditions of sale is available on request or on our web site.

Page 80

Page 81

APPENDIX 5B

PENNINES TOWNSHIP FUND 2020/21
APPLICATION FORM

REF
PF/20/20

Please read the Terms & Conditions and Guidance for Applicants. If you need advice or support to
complete your application form, please contact Pennines Township Office.
SECTION 1 – NAME OF PROJECT
Name of project

Littleborough Arts Festival – Covid recovery and looking forward

SECTION 2 - APPLICANT DETAILS
a) Name of organisation

Littleborough Arts Festival

b) Type of organisation

Voluntary/
community

Registered
charity

Sports/
leisure club

Limited
company

Private
company

Social
enterprise

Other
type

c) Aims and objectives of your organisation and activities or services it provides
Littleborough Arts Festival is a Charitable Incorporated Organisation (CIO) which exists to advance the
appreciation, education and involvement in the arts in Littleborough for the public benefit, in particular but
not exclusively, by the provision of an arts festival, workshops and public concerts.
In 2020 a, largely, new group of trustees took over the running of the festival with the aims to revive and
extend the festival both in terms of its scope (arts) and its reach (inclusivity and engagement).
The Festival is working towards a plan for a festival in 2022, which includes applications for Arts Council
funding. This application to Pennines Township is being submitted late in 2021 due to a need we have very
recently identified, which is the demand for arts workshops during the current covid restrictions. We
therefore are submitting an application which is both “late” for 2021 in order to try and meet this demand and
to support some capacity building activity for young people as part of our preparation for a festival in 2022.

d) Contact name

Rose Bibby

e) Contact telephone
f) Contact address and
postcode
g) Email address
h) Web address

littleboroughartsfestival.co.uk

Page 82

Form PT03

SECTION 3 – ORGANISATION FINANCES
a) Have you applied for or received a Township grant before?

Yes

No

b) If you have answered yes to question a), please give details below
Littleborough Arts Festival is in a new format, with new trustees and activity. The detail of any previous
Township grants is not known (though if it’s needed we are sure we can find out).
Information entered from Pennines Township records:
PF/07/18 Littleborough Arts Festival 2018 (Lantern Parade) – Awarded £3,150
PEF/02/17 Littleborough Arts Festival 2017 (Lantern Parade) – Awarded £1,000
PW/08/16 Woollen Woods 2017 – Awarded £500
PF/35/15 Littleborough Arts Festival 2016 (Lantern Parade) – Awarded £1,000
PEF/06/13 Littleborough Arts Festival 2014 – Awarded £750
PF/18/12 Littleborough Arts Festival 2013 – Awarded £1,500
E03-10/11 Littleborough Arts Festival 2011 – Awarded £1,000

c) Does more than 50% of your annual base budget/income come
from Rochdale Council?

Yes

No

If yes, detail below the amounts received and Council Services providing budget/income to your
organisation (a copy of your application will be forwarded to your relevant Link Officer for their comments)

Page 83
Form PT03

SECTION 4 – ABOUT THE PROJECT AND JUSTIFICATION
Details of the proposed project and what benefits will this project bring for participants,
organisation, group or wider community?
There are two elements to this project is part of our overall plan for the next couple of years to boost arts
activity, participation, capacity and confidence in and around Littleborough, both in response to the covid
pandemic and recovery and in preparation for the 2022 Littleborough Arts Festival.
We believe that by providing more opportunity for local people to participate in arts activity, we will directly
improve the life circumstances of people in the Littleborough area, including the wider Pennines township.
We believe that by providing more arts and cultural experiences as a lead in to the Littleborough Arts
Festival we will directly boost local confidence and identity of place in Littleborough, including the wider
Pennines township.
We believe that by providing opportunities for local people to become involved in the development and
delivery of an arts festival we will boost the capacity and the prosperity of the Littleborough area, including
the wider Pennines township.
Covid recovery
During early 2021, we have started to deliver online arts workshops across a wide variety of arts media and
through local artists and facilitators, using the last of the funds from the previous format of the Littleborough
Arts Festival, which had to be cancelled due to the Covid pandemic. The demand for these workshops has
been overwhelming and we have been swamped with requests for more. We believe that it is an important
facet of our recovery from the impact of Covid-19 in our community that we provide people with opportunities
to participate in the arts in safe spaces. We would like to double our current capacity with township funds of
£2,385 to continue to provide workshops during (what we hope will be) the early stages of covid recovery,
through the provision of blended learning (online and, safely, face to face) so that 60 local people can start
to regain their confidence and creativity through arts participation.

We will be applying to Pennines Townships in 2021-22 to support the development of the 2022 festival and
to enable us to attract more funds to the Pennines, supporting the people, place and prosperity of the area,
especially through Arts Council funds.

Project start date

March 2021

Project completion
date

30th September 2021

Page 84
Form PT03

SECTION 5 – PROJECT FINANCES
a) Cost of project

£4,770

b) Amount of grant required

£2,385

c) Amount from other sources

£2,385

d) Details of other funding
Funder
Arts Council (mop up programme
from the cancelled 2020 activity
due to Covid 19)

What they may fund
Half of the workshops (£2,385)

Dates of funding decisions
Already secured

Volunteer contribution from the
new Littleborough Arts Festival
Trustees.

Already committed
The trustees includes those who
are skilled and qualified in
programme development, arts and
education, providing the
equivalent professional service as
a volunteer (equivalent of £15 per
hour). This is based on an
estimate of 35 hours per person x
5 people x £15

e) Breakdown of proposed expenditure relating to the amount of grant required (Enclose
quotations, cost estimates or extracts from websites/catalogues. At least two quotations will be
required for any items to be funded that will cost £1,000 or more to demonstrate value for money.
Costs for items to include VAT only if your organisation cannot claim VAT back from HM Revenue
and Customs).
Expenditure item

Cost

Arts Workshops
See separate breakdown of workshop costs (appendix 1)

£2,385

TOTAL £2,385

Page 85
Form PT03

SECTION 6 – SUPPORTING DOCUMENTATION
Please supply the following documents when you submit your application. IF YOU DO NOT SUPPLY
THESE DOCUMENTS, WE WILL NOT BE ABLE TO PROCESS YOUR APPLICATION. Please tick the
boxes to confirm which documents you have attached to this application.
a) Annual accounts and bank statement(s)
b) Constitution/governing document
c) If your project works with children and young people under 18 years old or vulnerable adults, please
confirm your organisation has the following:
Child protection policies and procedures
Yes
N/A
Disclosure & Barring Service (DBS) checked staff and
Yes
N/A
.volunteers
d) Quotes/estimates/extracts from websites/catalogues for
proposed expenditure

SECTION 7 - DECLARATION
We, the undersigned agree to:









Abide by Pennines Township Funds Terms and Conditions.
No expenditure being incurred on this project prior to the grant decision being given.
Certify that the information contained in this application is correct and that we are authorised
by the organisation to accept these conditions on their behalf.
Use funds, if granted, only as specified in this application, unless receiving authorisation from
Pennines Township Office to make changes.
Send the invoices/receipts for all payments made with this grant along with the completed
Project Evaluation Form to the Pennines Township Office.
Agree to participate in monitoring, auditing and evaluation related to this fund.
Highlight the support of Pennines Township in all publicity material and agree to Rochdale
Council’s use of the organisation’s name and photographs for promotional purposes.
Inform Pennines Township Office immediately if either signatory leaves the organisation or
can no longer fulfil their responsibilities, or someone else takes over responsibility for the
grant on behalf of the organisation.
Organisation Chair or Treasurer
Contact Person
(Different from Contact Person)

Signature

Signature

Full name
Position

Rose Bibby
Vice-Chair

Full name
Position

Nicol Stuart Kennedy
Treasurer

Date

23/02/2021

Date

23/02/2021

Before you send your application to us, please check that you have:
 answered all the relevant questions and
 enclosed all the information requested:
- Annual accounts
- Constitution/governing document
- Bank statement(s)
- Quotations/cost estimates/extracts from websites/catalogues
- BACS form
We will return incomplete application forms.
Please send your completed application form and supporting documentation to the Pennines
Township Office Email: pennines.township@rochdale.gov.uk
and sharron.worrall@rochdale.gov.uk
Page 86
Form PT03

Appendix 1

LAF Workshops fees 2020
Artist fee £30 ph or £269 per day

Artist Name

Session Name

Time
Dedicated

Material Spend

Total

Field Recording

1 day

£0.00

£269.00

Music For
Preschoolers

5 hours

£0.00

£150.00

Chance Poetry

5 hours

£0.00

£150.00

Recycled
Jewelry Making

5 hours

£10.00

£160.00

Herbal Winter
Lip Balm
Making

7 hours

£50.00

£260.00

Intro to Writing
Folk Songs

7 hours

£0.00

£210.00

How to Make a
Knitted Flower
Brooch

7 hours

£50.00

£260.00

Fashion
Illustration Life
Drawing

1 day

£50.00

£319.00

Hospital Music Machines and
Healing

1 day

£0.00

£269.00

Henna
Workshop

5 hours

£50.00

£200.00

Printmaking

5 hours

£50.00

£200.00

Crafternoon

2 Days

£0.00

£538.00
Total £2985.00
Total £1896.00

Page 87

Overheads
Admin @ £20 ph calculated at 1 hour per workshop: £140.00
Space Hire @ £10 ph calculated at 20 hours: £200.00
Material Postage @ £20 per workshop x 4: £80.00

Artist Fees: £1736.00
Overheads: £420.00
Material Spend: £160.00
Contingency: £69.00 (2.89%)
Total: £2385.00

Page 88

Agenda Item 7

Report to Pennines Township Delegated and Funding Sub-Committee
Date of Meeting
Portfolio
Report Author
Public/Private Document

10th March 2021
Cabinet Member for
Environment
Nathan McKendrey
Public

Dale Street, Milnrow Experimental Traffic Regulation Order
Executive Summary
1.1

The purpose of this report is to appraise the committee of proposals for Dale
Street, Milnrow using the Government’s Active Travel Fund.

1.2

Furthermore it is to seek approval to implement a number of Experimental
Traffic Regulation Orders required to facilitate the scheme.
Recommendation

2.1

It is recommended that Members approve an experimental scheme as
detailed in paragraph 2.2 and authorise the Head of Highways and
Engineering Service to promote, advertise and make the required
Experimental Traffic Regulation Orders (‘TROs’).

2.2

To approve the introduction of an experimental TRO to make Dale Street
One-way in a westbound direction from its junction with Cornfield Street to its
junction with Kiln Lane. There would also be one-way orders proposed for
Stone Street, Stonefield Street and Station Road.

2.3

To approve the introduction of an experimental TRO to amend the existing
parking restrictions, as required to facilitate the proposed Active Travel
Scheme in and around Milnrow Centre.

2.4

The experimental order will require statutory consultation, then it will be
implemented which will be the start of a public consultation exercise for a
period of up to 6-months during which time objections can be made. Any
representations made during this period will be reviewed and presented back
to Pennines Township for consideration.

Page 89

2.5

Should no objections be received to the experimental TRO, the committee is
asked to authorise the Head of Highways and Engineering Service to make
the experimental TRO permanent.
Reason for Recommendation

3.1

Rochdale Council have been successful in obtaining Active Travel Fund from
Central Government with the principal aim to reallocate road space from
motorised vehicles to active forms of travel such as walking and cycling.

3.2

In order to achieve a successful bid, the Highways Service have reimagined
the space along Dale Street to allow for increased walking and dedicated
cycling lanes, whilst maintaining some on-street parking and other loading and
bus stop facilities.

3.3

The experimental order will require statutory consultation to be held with
Transport for Greater Manchester, Bus Operators and Emergency Services and
will be developed in conjunction with them.
Key Points for Consideration

4.1

The following bus services are currently routed along Dale Street:









408 general service – Rochdale-Milnrow-Shaw-Royton-Oldham. Hourly
service in each direction.
435 general service – Buckstones-Shaw-High Crompton-Turf Hill-Rochdale –
Single early morning Saturday journey.
R4 Ladyhouse-Milnrow-Rochdale / R5 – Peppermint Bridge-Newhey-MilnrowRochdale general services – These services use Cornfield Street to access /
egress the residential estate to the northeast (Kiln Lane/ Hursted Road /
Pennine Drive / Wellington Street). The extents of the potential Dale Street
scheme shared on the Teams call could potentially be adjusted to prevent
these services cutting-off the estate to the north.
805 school service – Norden-Rochdale-Milnrow-Newhey-Shaw-Blue Coat
School (vice-versa). AM 1 service, PM 2 services.
854 school service – Halifax Road-Wardle-Hollingworth Academy (viceversa). AM 1 service, PM 1 service.
891 school service – Shore-Littleborough-Wardle-Milnrow-St Cuthberts
School (vice-versa). AM 1 service, PM 1 service.
935 school service – Crompton High School-Buckstones-Milnrow (viceversa). PM 1 service.

4.2

The proposed Experimental One-way will affect existing bus routes and some
services will need to be re-routed or withdrawn.

4.3

Buses will still be able to travel in a westerly direction along Dale Street and
can use the southerly side of Dale Street to pick up and alight passengers.

4.4

The scheme will be developed in conjunction with Ward Councillors and the
Chair of Pennines Township and will only be implemented with their support.

Page 90

4.5

There will be a six-month objection period for affected parties to raise their
concerns.
Alternatives Considered

4.6

Keep Dale Street in its existing form and do not undertake any work.

4.7

There are very few viable alternatives which meet the criteria for the Active
Travel Fund.
Costs and Budget Summary

5.1

The recommendation would require an experimental TRO and physical works
on-site to relocate road space to pedestrians and cyclists as detailed in
paragraph 2.2.

5.2

The cost of the TRO is approximately £15,000 and will be wholly funded from
the Government’s Active Travel Fund.
Risk and Policy Implications

6.1

To implement the above option an experimental TRO would be required.

6.2

This experimental TRO would form part of the Government’s Active Travel
Fund announced during the COVID Pandemic.

6.3

If no objections are received to the experimental TRO within a 6 month
objection period, the experimental TRO can be made permanent.

6.4

If objections are received to the experimental TRO, the matter will be further
considered by this Committee before a decision is made on whether to make
the experimental TRO permanent.
Consultation

7.1

Consultation is to take place, much of which is a statutory requirement as
described above in Sections 2.4, 2.5 and 3.3.

Background Papers

Place of Inspection

8.

For Further Information Contact:

Nathan McKendrey, ,
Nathan.McKendrey@Rochdale.Gov.UK

Page 91

